
Meeting of:  Audit and Governance Committee
Date: Monday, 8th April, 2019
Time: 6.00 pm.
Venue: Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, 

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

3.  URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

4.  ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting. 

5.  MINUTES 4 - 8

To consider the minutes of Audit and Governance Committee the 
meeting held on Monday 17th December 2018. 

6.  UPDATE ON STAR PROCUREMENT 

The Committee will receive a presentation on STAR Procurement. 

6(a) EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 9 - 18

Public Document Pack



A progress report of the Council’s Auditors: Mazars LLP 

6(b) ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2018/19 19 - 25

A report outlining changes to accounting policies for the 2018/19 
accounts. 

7.  RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRESS REPORT - Q3 2018/19 26 - 38

The Council’s Risk Manager will provide Members with a report on the 
Quarter 3 Risk Management data for 2018/2019. 

8.  INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTER 3 REPORT 2018/19 39 - 57

For the Committee to receive an update from Internal Audit for Quarter 
3, 2018/2019. 

9.  INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2019/20 58 - 82

The Committee will receive a report on the Internal Audit Plan 2019/20. 

10.  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

To consider that the press and public be excluded from the remaining 
part of the meeting pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 on the grounds that discussions may involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the provisions of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 and public 
interest would not be served in publishing the information.  

11.  IT DISASTER RECOVERY FOLLOW UP AUDIT 83 - 100

The Committee will receive a report on the IT Disaster Recovery 
Follow up Audit. 

Audit and Governance Committee Members:
Councillor Ali Ahmed Councillor Patricia Mary Dale
Councillor James Gartside Councillor Aftab Hussain
Councillor Peter Malcolm Councillor Donna Martin E
Councillor Kathleen Nickson Councillor Aasim Rashid
Mrs Ann Taylor Mr Andrew Underdown
Councillor Shah Wazir



For more information about this meeting, please contact:
Peter Thompson
Governance and Committee Services
Floor 2, Number One Riverside,
Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Telephone: 01706 924715
e-mail: peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk 

mailto:peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk


AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Monday 17th December 2018

PRESENT:  Councillor Peter Malcolm (Chair); Councillors Ahmed, Dale, 
James Gartside, Nickson, Rashid, and Wazir; Andrew Underdown 
(Independent Person)

OFFICERS:  David Wilcock – Assistant Director Legal, Governance and 
Workforce
Ian Corbridge – Head of Internal Audit
Martin Nixon – Risk Manager
Elaine Newsome – Head of Governance

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  Daniel Watson – Mazars External Audit

25. APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from Councillor Donna Martin.

26. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

No declarations of interest were made.

27. ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

RESOLVED: That the press and public be excluded from the meeting 
during consideration of the item Back O’th Moss Community Centre 
(minute 36 refers).

28. MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 2nd October 2018 were agreed as a 
correct record and signed by the Chair.

29. EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2018
The Committee received a progress report from the Council’s external 
auditors, noting that the focus of their work had been around planning 
and preparation for the upcoming audit process.   

In response to a question on planning for the annual audit, Members 
were assured that there were no concerns around the prescribed 
timescales.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

Page 4

Agenda Item 5



30. EXTERNAL AUDIT STRATEGY MEMORANDUM 2018-2019

The Council’s external auditors submitted their Audit Strategy 
Memorandum 2018/19 for consideration by the Committee.  

In presenting the report, Members were advised on key factors 
including:
 The scope of the audit and respective responsibilities of the Council 

and auditors;
 Materiality thresholds in relation to the Council’s financial 

statements, including financial parameters for reporting minor errors 
to the Committee and the value which would require the auditors to 
issue a qualified opinion on the accounts;

 Areas of risk, which were noted as being common to all local 
authorities;

 The approach to value for money with particularly focus on Health 
and social care integration, financial pressures and the Councils 
response to the OFSTED inspection of children’s services.

Members raised the following issues:

 The process for authorising any additional audit activity and 
associated fees: The Committee noted that relevant officers would 
agree the scope for any additional audit work, but that the Chief 
Finance Officer would confirm any additional associated costs.

 Collaboration across Greater Manchester authorities in relation to 
the pension fund: Members were advised that local authorities were 
individually responsible for external audit activity on the pension 
fund but that Mazars were the appointed auditors for most of the 
GM authorities so could take a holistic view on the operation of the 
fund

RESOLVED: That the External Audit Strategy Memorandum for 2018-
19 be noted.

31. INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTER 2 REPORT 2018/19

The Head of Internal Audit submitted the second quarter performance 
report detailing progress of the internal audit team in relation to planned 
audit activity.  Members noted that the service were on target to 
complete the plan and commended officers from the Counter Fraud 
Team in their recent recovery actions.

In considering the report, Members raised the following:

 Planned work relating to IT disaster recovery: Recent ICT issues 
were noted and members sought assurances that the March 
2019 completion date for this activity would be achieved.  In 
response, the Head of Internal Audit advised of a meeting with 

Page 5



relevant officers, due to take place shortly, and undertook to 
report back to the Committee at its April meeting.

Establishment of the Section 106 Steering Group: Members were 
advised that the group were projected to hold their first meeting in 
January 2019;

Internal Audit Performance Indicators: In response to a question on the 
target cost per audit day, Members were advised that costs were below 
that of the target figure of £260, currently at £242 per audit day;

In relation to the audits completed in Quarter 2, the Committee 
received assurances that the recommendations for the Trading 
Standards service would be progress reviewed as part of planned audit 
follow up activity;

On the issue of unplanned work, Members were advised that ad hoc 
requests for audit activity were anticipated and time set aside in the 
services work schedule to allow for any issues arising during the year.  

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

32. AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE EFFECTIVENESS - SELF-
ASSESSMENT

The Committee considered a report on the recent self-assessment 
exercise which aimed to establish levels of compliance with recognised 
CIPFA best practice.

The evaluation concluded that the Committee had a high degree of 
performance against good practice principles.  It also identified a 
number of opportunities to further develop against the self-assessment 
framework including consideration of the inclusion of independent 
members, with specialised knowledge on the committee and 
establishing the core knowledge and skills of existing Committee 
members as a platform for future learning and development activities.  
The Head of Internal Audit requested Members submit their responses 
to the knowledge and skills framework and offered one to one support 
to any Member who required assistance.

The Committee considered the following:

 How the data from the self-assessment could be used corporately: 
The Assistant Director (Legal, Governance and Workforce) advised 
that these could be used as measures in the strategic plan, 
highlighting, for example, areas of good governance;

 The role of the committee in challenging risk measures and 
controls: It was noted that one of the primary functions of the 
internal audit service was to challenge internal risk controls.  

Page 6



Additionally, the work plan for the services was developed to 
address risk

33. PROPOSAL TO RECRUIT AN INDEPENDENT MEMBER ON AUDIT 
AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Committee considered a report outlining proposals to recruit an 
independent member with specialist knowledge and experience in one 
or more of the functions of the Committee.  It was noted that this 
position would be in addition to the 2 independent persons appointed 
under the Localism Act 2011. It was highlighted that CIPFA guidance 
endorsed the involvement of independent members as good practice, 
as they were able to offer a further impartial view on the matters before 
Committee.

Members welcomed the proposal and RESOLVED to recommend to 
Council that the membership of the Audit and Governance Committee 
should be extended to include one or more independent members.

34. RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRESS REPORT - Q2 2018/19

The committee considered the quarter 2 summary on risk management 
and insurance activity during 2018/19.  The Risk Manager provided a 
comprehensive report outlining major risk and insurance focussed 
initiatives and associated progress.  

As an update on claims cost mitigation, Members were advised that the 
total mitigation figure had further increased to £629,575 and that details 
would be circulated to the Committee by email.

The Committee raised the following:

 What periodic challenge was undertaken in relation to risk controls, 
particularly in areas of significant risk and high residual risk?  It was 
noted that high risk areas were factored into both the corporate and 
service level risk registers which were routinely monitored and 
challenged.  Further detail on specific risks could be provided to the 
Committee on request.

 In relation to claims relating to the condition of highways and 
pavements, it was noted that the insurance team were involved in 
identifying priority areas for inclusion in the Councils scheme for 
repair.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

Page 7



35. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED: that the public and press be excluded from the meeting 
during consideration of the next item of business on the grounds that 
discussions may involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

36. BACK O'TH MOSS COMMUNITY CENTRE

The Committee received, for information, a report on the internal audit 
follow-up activity relating to Back O’th Moss Community Centre.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

Page 8



Audit Progress Report
Rochdale Borough Council
8th April 2019

Page 9

Agenda Item 6a



CONTENTS

1. Audit progress

2. National publications

This document is to be regarded as confidential to Rochdale Borough Council. It has been prepared for the sole use of the Audit and

Governance Committee. No responsibility is accepted to any other person in respect of the whole or part of its contents. Our written consent

must first be obtained before this document, or any part of it, is disclosed to a third party.

2
Page 10



1. AUDIT PROGRESS

Purpose of this report

This report provides the Audit and Governance Committee with an update on progress in delivering our responsibilities as your external

auditors.

Audit progress

Our key audit stages are summarised in the diagram shown below and our Audit Strategy Memorandum is being presented to the Audit

and Governance Committee for discussion at this meeting.

Since reporting our progress to the December Audit and Governance Committee we have completed our interim audit visit. This included

early substantive testing in the following areas:

 Months 1 – 10 non-pay expenditure

 Months 1 – 10 payroll expenditure

 Months 1 – 10 fees and charges income

 Existence and ownership testing of the Council’s property, plant and equipment and heritage asset balances

 Agreement of opening ledger balances to the prior year financial statements.

There are no issues to bring to your attention at this stage of the audit.

Financial Reporting Workshops

In January we held our Local Government Financial Reporting workshops for officers involved in the production of the financial statements

and officers from this Authority responsible for preparing the Authority’s financial statements attended. These workshops provided an

update on the latest developments as well as a forum for our clients to discuss emerging issues. It included a revisit of 2017-18 final

accounts issues, early close implications, changes in the 2018-19 Code and a forward look to future regulatory and policy changes.

• Final review and disclosure checklist of financial 

statements

• Final partner review

• Agreeing content of letter of representation

• Reporting to Audit and Governance Committee 

• Reviewing post balance sheet events

• Signing our opinion 

• Updating our understanding of the Council

• Initial opinion and value for money risk 

assessments

• Development of our audit strategy

• Agreement of timetables

• Preliminary analytical procedures

• Documenting systems and controls

• Walkthrough procedures

• Consideration of key accounting 

issues

• Controls testing, including general 

and application IT controls

• Early substantive testing of transactions

• Review of draft financial statements

• Reassessment of audit strategy,              

revising as necessary

• Delivering our planned audit testing

• Continuous communication on emerging 

issues

• Clearance meeting

Planning

Nov 18-Jan 19

Interim

Jan-April 19

Fieldwork

June-July 19

Completion

July 2019

1. Audit progress 2. National publications

3
Page 11



2.    NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS

Publication/update Key points

National Audit Office (NAO)

1. Local auditor reporting in England 2018 Main findings reported by auditors in 2017-18. 

2. Local authorities - governance
Consideration of VfM and financial sustainability in local 

authorities. 

3. NHS financial sustainability
Current picture not sustainable and yet to be seen whether 

spending plans will deliver the change required. 

4. Planning for New Homes
Overall assessment that planning system not working 

effectively. 

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA)

5. Local quality audit forum December 2018 forum slides available online. 

6. Oversight of audit quality, quarterly compliance reports No significant issues.

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA)

7.
Scrutinising Public Accounts: A Guide to Government 

Accounts
Online publication resource available.

8. An introductory guide to Local Government Finance Updated guide which may be of interest to Members. 

9. CIPFA Fraud and Corruption Tracker 2017-18 Annual report. Increase in fraud detected or prevented. 

Mazars

10. Summary of NHS long-term plan Views on the deliverability of the plan will vary. 

Local Government Association

11. Twenty-first Century Councils

Toolkit to help councils empower women, parents and 

carers to become local councillors and take on leadership 

positions.

1. Audit progress 2. National publications

4
Page 12



2.  NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS

1.   Local auditor reporting in England 2018, NAO, January 2019

Since 2015, the Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) has been responsible for setting the standards for local public audit, through 
maintaining a Code of Audit Practice and issuing associated guidance to local auditors.

The report describes the roles and responsibilities of local auditors and relevant national bodies in relation to the local audit framework 
and summarises the main findings reported by local auditors in 2017-18. It also considers how the quantity and nature of the issues 
reported have changed since the C&AG took up his new responsibilities in 2015, and highlights differences between the local government 
and NHS sectors. The report highlights a number of points as summarised below. 

 Auditors gave unqualified opinions on financial statements in 2015-16, 2016-17 and 2017-18. This provides assurance that local public 
bodies are complying with financial reporting requirements. As at 17 December 2018, auditors had yet to issue 16 opinions on financial 
statements, so this does not yet represent the full picture for 2017-18.

 Auditors qualified their conclusions on arrangements to secure value for money at an increasing number of local public bodies: up from
170 (18%) in 2015-16 to 208 (22%) in 2017-18. Again, as at 17 December 2018, auditors had yet to issue 20 conclusions on 
arrangements to secure value for money, so this number may increase further for 2017-18. This level of qualifications reinforces the 
need to ensure that local auditors’ reporting informs as much as possible relevant departments’ understanding of the issues facing local 
public bodies.

 Auditors qualified their conclusions at 40 (8%) of local government bodies. The proportion of qualifications was highest for single-tier 
local authorities and county councils where auditors qualified 27 (18%) of their value for money arrangements conclusions. The 
qualifications were for weaknesses in governance arrangements, often also highlighted by inspectorates’ ratings of services as 
inadequate.

 More local NHS bodies received qualified conclusions on arrangements to secure VfM than local government bodies. In 2017-18, 
auditors qualified 168 (38%) of local NHS bodies’ conclusions; up from 130 (29%) in 2015-16, mainly because of not meeting financial 
targets such as keeping spending within annual limits set by Parliament; not delivering savings to balance the body’s budget; or
because of inadequate plans to achieve financial balance. The increase between 2015-16 and 2017-18 is particularly steep at clinical 
commissioning groups, with qualifications for poor financial performance increasing from 21 (10%) in 2015-16 to 67 (32%) in 2017-18.

 Local auditors are using their additional reporting powers, but infrequently. Since April 2015, local auditors have issued only three 
Public Interest Reports, and made only seven Statutory Recommendations. These Public Interest Reports have drawn attention to
issues such as unlawful use of parking income, governance failings in the oversight of a council-owned company, management of 
major projects or members’ conduct. Auditors have made Statutory Recommendations in relation to failing to deliver planned cost 
savings, poor processes for producing the annual financial statements and failure to address weaknesses highlighted by independent 
reviews.

 A significant proportion of local bodies may not fully understand the main purpose of the auditor’s conclusion on arrangements to 
secure value for money and the importance of addressing those issues. 102 local public bodies were contacted where auditors had 
reported concerns about their arrangements to ensure value for money:

- half of the bodies (51) said that the auditor’s report identified issues that they already knew about;

- fifty-seven (95%) of those responding said they had plans in place to address their weaknesses but only three were able to say that 
they had fully implemented their plans; and

- twenty-six (25%) did not respond at all to the NAO’s request. 

 The extent to which central government departments responsible for the oversight of local bodies have formal arrangements in place to 

draw on the findings from local auditor reports varies. Processes in the relevant central government departments differ. The 

Department of Health & Social Care, NHS Improvement and NHS England have arrangements in place to monitor the in-year financial 

performance of local NHS bodies, and use information from local auditor reports to confirm their understanding of risks in the system. 

The Home Office and Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government consider the output from local auditors’ reports to obtain a 

broad overview of the issues local auditors are raising, but there is a risk that these two departments may be unaware of all relevant 

local issues. 

1. Audit progress 2. National publications

5
Page 13



2.  NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS

1.   Local auditor reporting in England 2018, NAO, January 2019 (continued)

 Under the current local audit and performance framework, there is no direct consequence of receiving a non-standard report from the 
local auditor. Before 2010, a qualified value for money arrangements conclusion would have a direct impact on the scored 
assessments for all local public bodies published by the Audit Commission at that time. While departments may intervene in connection 
with the issues giving rise to a qualification, such as failure to meet expenditure limits, there are no formal processes in place, other 
than the local audit framework, that report publicly whether local bodies are addressing the weaknesses that local auditors are 
reporting.

A list of all local bodies that received a non-standard local auditor report for 2017-18 was published alongside the report.

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/local-auditor-reporting-in-england-2018/

2.   Local authorities - governance, NAO, January 2019

The NAO has recently published a report on local authority governance, which examines whether local governance arrangements provide 
local taxpayers and Parliament with assurance that local authority spending achieves value for money and that authorities are financially 
sustainable.

The report finds that local authorities have faced significant challenges since 2010. For example, they have seen a real-terms reduction in 
spending power of 29% and a 15% increase in the number of children in care. These pressures raise the risk of authorities’ failing to 
remain financially sustainable and deliver services.

The way authorities have responded to these challenges have tested local governance arrangements. Many authorities have pursued 
large-scale transformations or commercial investments that carry a risk of failure or under-performance and add greater complexity to 
governance arrangements. Spending by authorities on resources to support governance also fell by 34% in real terms between 2010-11 
and 2017-18, potentially increasing the risks faced by local bodies.

In 2017-18, auditors issued qualified VFM arrangements conclusions for around one in five single tier and county councils. A survey, 
carried out by the NAO, of external auditors indicates that several authorities did not take appropriate steps to address these issues.

Some external auditors have raised concerns about the effectiveness of the internal checks and balances at the local authorities they 
audit, such as risk management, internal audit and scrutiny and overview. For example, 27% of auditors surveyed by the NAO do not 
agree that their authority’s audit committees provided sufficient assurance about the authorities’ governance arrangements. Auditors felt 
that many authorities are struggling in more than one aspect of governance, demonstrating the stress on governance at a local level.

Some authorities have begun to question the contribution of external audit to providing assurance on their governance arrangements. 51% 
of chief finance officers from single tier and county councils responding to our survey indicated that there are aspects of external audit 
they would like to change. This includes a greater focus on the value for money element of the audit (26%). External auditors recognise 
this demand within certain local authorities. However, their work must conform to the auditing standards they are assessed against and 
any additional activity may have implications for the fee needed for the audit.

The report also finds that MHCLG does not systematically collect data on governance, meaning it can’t rigorously assess whether issues 
are isolated incidents or symptomatic of failings in aspects of the system. MHCLG recognises that it needs to be more active in leading 
co-ordinated change across the local governance system. The report recommends that MHCLG works with local authorities and other 
stakeholders to assess the implications of, and possible responses to, the various governance issues identified. It should examine ways of 
introducing greater transparency and openness to its formal and informal interventions in local authorities and should adopt a stronger 
leadership role in overseeing the network of organisations managing key aspects of the governance framework.

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/local-authority-governance-2/

1. Audit progress 2. National publications

6
Page 14

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/local-auditor-reporting-in-england-2018/
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/local-authority-governance-2/


2.  NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS

3. NHS financial sustainability, NAO, January 2019

This is the NAO’s seventh report on the financial sustainability of the NHS. In its recent reports, in December 2015, November 2016 and 
January 2018, the NAO concluded that financial problems in the NHS were endemic and that extra in-year cash injections to trusts had 
been spent on coping with current pressures rather than the transformation required to put the health system on a sustainable footing. To 
address this, local partnerships of clinical commissioning groups (CCGs), NHS trusts and NHS foundation trusts (trusts) and local 
authorities were set up to develop long-term strategic plans and transform the way services are provided more quickly.

In June 2018, the Prime Minister announced a long-term funding settlement for the NHS, which will see NHS England’s budget rise by an 
extra £20.5 billion by 2023-24. Between 2019-20 and 2023-24, this equates to an average annual real-terms increase of 3.4%. The 
government asked NHS England to produce a 10-year plan that aims to ensure that this additional funding is well spent. In return for this 
extra funding, the government has set the NHS five financial tests to show how the NHS will do its part to put the service onto a more 
sustainable footing.

This report covers 2017-18, so the NAO first concludes on financial sustainability for that year. The NAO considers that the growth in 
waiting lists and slippage in waiting times, and the existence of substantial deficits in some parts of the system, offset by surpluses 
elsewhere do not add up to a picture that can be described as sustainable. Recently, the long-term plan for the NHS has been published, 
and government has committed to longer-term stable growth in funding for NHS England.

In the NAO’s view these developments are positive, and the planning approach seen so far looks prudent. The NAO further states that it 
will really be able to judge whether the funding package will be enough to achieve the NHS’ ambitions when we know the level of 
settlement for other key areas of health spending that emerges from the Spending Review later in the year. This will help inform whether 
there is enough to deal with the embedded problems from the last few years and move the health system forward. 

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/nhs-financial-sustainability/

4. Planning for New Homes, NAO, February 2019

The NAO has recently published a report on Planning for new homes. This report is part of a series on housing in England, including 
Housing in England: overview (2017) and Homelessness (2017). The latest report focuses on the Ministry of Housing, Communities and 
Local Government’s (MHCLG’s) objective for housing in England to deliver a million homes by the end of 2020; half a million by the end of 
2022; and to deliver 300,000 net additional homes a year on average. The report recognises that increasing the supply of new homes is a 
complex task and one of the measures MHCLG has introduced to help achieve the objective is reforming the planning system. The report 
notes that the planning system is fundamental to providing new homes and it assesses how effectively MHCLG supports the planning
regime to provide the right homes in the right places through:

• supporting local authorities to produce plans for how the supply of new homes will meet need in their area;

• supporting local authorities and the Planning Inspectorate in having effective and sufficiently resourced planning processes and teams 
to deal with planning applications and appeals; and

• working effectively with local authorities, other government departments and developers to ensure infrastructure to support new homes
is planned and funded.

The report finds that at present, the system is not providing value for money and that the supply of new homes has failed to meet demand. 
It notes that a number of factors have contributed to the planning system not working and some of these include:

• the process of setting the need for new homes;

• the reductions in local authority capability;

• the under-performing Planning Inspectorate; and

• failures in the system to ensure adequate contributions for infrastructure.

The report recognises that MHCLG’s new National Planning Policy Framework is an important step, but it is too early to tell whether the 
changes it introduces will be effective. The report also makes a number of recommendations for MHCLG to implement alongside the 
framework to help the planning systems work more effectively.

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/planning-for-new-homes/

1. Audit progress 2. National publications

7
Page 15

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/nhs-financial-sustainability/
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/planning-for-new-homes/


2.    NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS

1. Audit progress 2. National publications

8

5. Local Audit Quality Forum, Public Sector Audit Appointments, December 2018

The Local Audit Quality Forum (LAQF) is a forum within which representatives of relevant audit bodies can work together and collaborate 
with others to share good practice and strive to enable improvements in the quality, efficiency and effectiveness of audit arrangements 
and practices in principal local authorities and police bodies in England. PSAA wants to develop a momentum and a passion for 
continuous improvement in audit arrangements throughout the entities and sectors for which PSAA has a mandate.

Slides of the Manchester December 2018 event are available on the PSAA website as per the link below. 

The theme of the Manchester event was financial resilience and sustainability, a major challenge for all local authorities and police bodies 
in the current climate and a key strategic concern as bodies prepare 2019/20 budgets and update medium term plans. The event 
explored:

 the nature and scale of the sustainability challenges facing local bodies;

 the strategies and disciplines which can help to address them successfully; and

 the roles and responsibilities of Chief Finance Officers and Auditors in helping to maintain resilience and sustainability.

https://www.psaa.co.uk/local-audit-quality-forum3/local-audit-quality-forum/

6.    Oversight of audit quality, quarterly compliance reports 2017-18, Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd

There are no significant issues arising in the latest quarterly compliance report issued by PSAA. 

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/contract-compliance-monitoring/principal-audits/mazars-audit-quality/

7.     CIPFA Fraud and Corruption Tracker 2017-18, CIPFA, October 2018

The CIPFA Fraud and Corruption Tracker (CFaCT) survey gives a national picture of fraud, bribery and corruption across UK local 
authorities and the actions being taken to prevent it. It aims to:

 help organisations understand where fraud losses could be occurring;

 provide a guide to the value of detected and prevented fraud loss; 

 help senior leaders understand the value of anti-fraud activity; and

 assist operational staff to develop pro-active anti-fraud plans.

The 2017-18 report shows that fraud continues to pose a major financial threat to local authorities, with £302m detected or prevented by 

councils in 2017-18. While this was £34m less than last year’s total, the report revealed an overall increase in the number of frauds 

detected or prevented – up to 80,000, from the 75,000 cases found in 2016-17. Among these cases there are reminders of some of the 

challenges being faced by local authorities, with the number of serious or organised crime cases doubling to 56, and a significant increase 

in the amount lost to business rates fraud, which jumped to £10.4m in 2017/18 from £4.3m in 2016-17.

https://www.cipfa.org/about-cipfa/press-office/latest-press-releases/local-councils-detect-or-prevent-£302m-in-fraud-in-2017-18

Page 16

https://www.psaa.co.uk/local-audit-quality-forum3/local-audit-quality-forum/
https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/contract-compliance-monitoring/principal-audits/mazars-audit-quality/
https://www.cipfa.org/about-cipfa/press-office/latest-press-releases/local-councils-detect-or-prevent-£302m-in-fraud-in-2017-18


2.    NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS

1. Audit progress 2. National publications

9

8.     Scrutinising Public Accounts: A Guide To Government Finances, CIPFA, November 2018

This guide provides an overview of the different processes for budgeting and performance reporting in central and local government, 
health bodies and includes key questions to ask when scrutinising government financial statements using examples based on UK public 
sector accounts.

This publication is available only .

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/s/scrutinising-public-accounts-a-guide-to-government-finances

9. An introductory guide to Local Government Finance, CIPFA, February 2019

This introductory guide addresses the basic questions regarding how money flows, how budgets are set and where it is spent in local 
government. An understanding of these issues is essential to realising the current issues in local government. 

This guide is aimed at helping local councillors, those working with and for local councils, and anybody with an interest in the sector to 
understand the complexity of local government finance.

The guide covers revenue and capital financing, financial reporting, governance and auditing as well as giving an overview of some of the 
key services provided by local councils.

This guide is available online only.

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/a/an-introductory-guide-to-local-government-finance-2019

10.       Summary of NHS long-term plan, Mazars, January 2019

The NHS Long Term Plan was published on 7 January 2019. It sets out the priorities for the new funding settlement announced in June 
2018 – a real terms increase of £20.5bn by 2023-24 representing an average increase of revenue funding of 3.4% per annum, compared 
to an average of 2.2% in recent years. 

Views on the deliverability of the plan will vary, particularly as some aspects of implementation will depend on spending review decisions 
later this year and the direction of travel for social care. The plan recognises existing financial pressures and workforce challenges and 
takes some steps to manage these risks whilst accepting that further nationally-led work is necessary to alleviate these constraints.

https://www.mazars.co.uk/Home/Industries/Public-Services/Health/NHS-Long-Term-Plan-summary

11.      Twenty-first Century Councils, Local Government Association, March 2019

This toolkit has been developed to help councils create the underlying policies, procedures, ethos and environment that encourages and 
empowers women, parents and carers to become local councillors and take on leadership positions.

The Local Government Association is encouraging councils to consider their existing practices, celebrate what is working, share good 
practice and take action to support councillors who are women, parents and carers.

The equal participation of women and men in local politics, as our elected councillors and as our leaders, is an important condition for 
effective democracy and good governance. Representative councils are best able to speak to, and for, their communities and to support 
the effective business of local government. Democracy and decision-making are strengthened when councillors reflect the people they 
seek to serve and represent.

https://www.local.gov.uk/twenty-first-century-councils

Page 17

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/s/scrutinising-public-accounts-a-guide-to-government-finances
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/a/an-introductory-guide-to-local-government-finance-2019
https://www.mazars.co.uk/Home/Industries/Public-Services/Health/NHS-Long-Term-Plan-summary
https://www.local.gov.uk/twenty-first-century-councils


Director: Karen Murray

Phone: 0161 238 9248

Mobile: 07721 234 043

Email:  karen.murray@mazars.co.uk

Manager: Daniel Watson

Phone: 0161 238 9349 
Mobile: 07909 985 324
Email:  diane.harold@mazars.co.uk

CONTACT

Page 18

mailto:karen.murray@mazars.co.uk
mailto:diane.harold@mazars.co.uk


Report to Audit and Governance Committee

Date of Meeting 8th April 2019
Portfolio Leader of the Council and 

Cabinet Member for 
Finance

Report Author Stuart Smith (Resources 
Directorate)

Public/Private Document Public

Accounting Policies 2018/19

Executive Summary

1. To inform Audit and Governance Committee of the changes to accounting 
policies for the 2018/19 accounts.

Recommendation

2. The amended accounting policies be approved for implementation for the 
2018/19 accounts.

Reason for Recommendation

3. Any changes to the Council’s accounting policies must be agreed by Audit 
and Governance Committee as per the Council’s financial regulations.

If the accounting policies are not amended to reflect changes in financial 
reporting requirements, there is a risk the 2018/19 Statement if Accounts 
may be qualified.

Key Points for Consideration

4.
4.1 Accounting Policies

The Council’s accounting policies are the specific principles, conventions, 
rules and practices that are applied in preparing and presenting the annual 
accounts. These accounting policies have to be disclosed as a note to the 
annual accounts. 

Page 19

Agenda Item 6b



The amended accounting policies to be used in the preparation of the 
2018/19 annual accounts are attached at Appendix 1. There are two 
significant changes in these accounting policies following the adoption of 
IFRS9 (financial instruments) and IFRS15 (revenue from contracts with 
customers).

4.2 Financial Instruments IFRS9 

The revised accounting standard relates to the treatment of financial assets that 
are classed as financial instruments. These include cash, debtors (both long 
and short term), investments and shareholdings but excluded from the definition 
are debtors that relate to taxation (e.g. VAT, business rates and council tax).  
Financial liabilities are largely unaffected.

This accounting standard requires the Council to review its financial assets and 
map them against new categories. Based on the assets the Council currently 
holds there is no impact on the Council’s bottom line. In making decisions on 
the classification of these assets the holding of investments for cash flow 
reasons and not primarily to trade will be key. Assets will need to be reviewed 
and impaired (i.e. reduced in value) where there is a risk the loan will not be 
repaid. The new classifications and how this works in practice are set out in the 
paragraphs below. 

In previous financial years, financial assets could be classified as loans and 
receivables, available for sale or unquoted equity investments at cost less 
impairment. 

Loans and receivables assets were initially shown at face value and then shown 
at amortised cost (where the interest and principal is spread over the life of the 
loan). That meant that the value on the balance sheet was the principal 
outstanding on the loan plus accrued interest to 31 March and as per the loan 
agreement. 

Available for sale assets were shown and measured at fair value (the value they 
would be exchanged between a willing buyer and seller). For quoted 
shareholdings fair value was the market value and for unquoted shareholdings 
an estimate of the value was made based on the Council’s share of the entity’s 
total earnings. Changes in values in these assets were held in an unusable 
reserve – the Available for Sale Reserve. 

Where a quoted market price was not available for a shareholding and could 
not be obtained at a reasonable cost the asset was held at cost less any 
impairment. 

Under IFRS9 there are three categories of financial assets
 amortised cost
 fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
 fair value through other profit and loss (FVPL)

All financial assets classed as financial instruments have to be mapped to the 
new categories from 1 April 2018. 

Page 20



Assets classed as amortised cost are investments and debtors where the 
amounts received relating to them are solely principal and interest and they are 
held to generate cash returns rather than trade. Assets that were previously 
classed as loans and receivables including the majority of the Council’s treasury 
management investments and loans to third parties will now be classed as 
amortised cost. This classification will result in no change to the accounting 
treatments. 

Assets classed as FVOCI are assets where the amounts received are solely 
principal and interest but the assets are held to collect cash and sell the assets. 
The Council does not currently have any of these assets. 

Assets classed as FVPL are assets where the amounts received are not 
principal and interest. The Council’s equity investments would fall within this 
category as income received would be in the form of dividends. 

Where these equity investments are not held to trade but are held for strategic 
reasons the Council can choose to designate these investments as FVOCI 
rather than FVPL. The Council has taken the option to designate those 
investments that are considered to be strategic.  Note this is a one time option 
and can not be reversed in future years.

Where assets are classed as FVOCI or FVPL their value is assessed at each 
year end. For FVOCI assets any change in value is charged to an unusable 
reserve – the Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve. 

Changes in value for FVPL assets are charged / credited to the income and 
expenditure each year end and charged to general reserves. This is a change 
from the current arrangements.  Applying the designation removes the risk of 
fair value losses impacting on the general fund. 

As at 1 April 2018 the Council has mapped the existing asset classifications to 
the revised classifications and transferred the existing Available for Sale reserve 
to the Financial Instrument Revaluation Reserve and other earmarked reserves. 
This will be shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement in the annual 
accounts. 

Assets classed as amortised cost or FVOCI (unless designated as such) have 
to be reviewed at each year end for impairment or credit loss. This means that 
this will mainly effect the long term loans to third party organisation, treated as 
capital expenditure, made by the Council. 

There is a three stage approach to impairments after the asset has been initially 
included on the balance sheet. At stage 1 if there has been no significant 
increase in credit risk since the loan was given the amount included as 
impairment is 12 months expected credit losses i.e. the likelihood of default by 
the borrower over the next 12 months. This impairment would result in the asset 
being reduced in value on the balance sheet with the loss charged to the 
income and expenditure account. It should be noted that this this loss is unlikely 
to be nil unless there is a local authority or central government guarantee such 
as that relating to the Housing Investment Fund where any loss up to 20% is 
guaranteed by government however materiality is considered as part of the 
assessment.

Page 21



Stage 2 of the process occurs if there is a significant increase in credit risk since 
the asset was recognised. If this was the case the amount included as 
impairment would be the lifetime expected credit losses i.e. the estimated 
amount of default over the life of the asset. At this stage interest income would 
continue be included on the original value of the loan. 

At Stage 3 the asset would become impaired if the debtor fails to meet its 
obligations i.e. failure to pay principal or interest due. Again lifetime expected 
credit losses would be charged as impairment but in this case interest would be 
included on the lower value of the loan i.e. the principal outstanding less 
impairment. 

Any impairment on loans that were treated as capital expenditure would be 
reversed out of the income and expenditure account and charged to the Capital 
Adjustment Account. 

It is not expected that the introduction of this accounting standard will have a 
significant impact on the general usable reserves of the Council. The 
disclosures that accompany this standard will provide additional transparency 
particularly of any potential failure of debtors to meet their repayment 
obligations. 

4.3 Revenue from contracts with customers IFRS15 

This revised accounting standard considers when income from contracts should 
be included in the accounts. In order to be classed as a contract an agreement 
does not have to be a written contract – it has to be approved by all parties, 
have identifiable rights and payment terms, have commercial substance and be 
probable that income will be collected. 

In order to ascertain when income should be included the performance 
obligations in a contract have to be identified, the transaction price has to be 
determined, and the transaction price allocated to each performance obligation 
and the income recognised as each performance obligation is satisfied. 

Income can be included over time or at a point in time. Income will be 
recognised over time when service recipients are receiving and consuming a 
service e.g. care home provision. Any other income is likely to be recognised at 
a point in time. 

The major impact of this standard is likely to be in the private sector, for 
example when an organisation is selling goods with a maintenance contract 
included. The income for the sale of goods would be recognised immediately 
but dependant on the contract terms the income relating to maintenance could 
be recognised over the life of the contract or at the start of the contract. 

It is not anticipated that this accounting standard will significantly change the 
current treatment of income in the Council’s accounts. 

4.4 Alternatives Considered

Page 22



4.4.1 Any changes to the Council’s accounting policies must be agreed by 
Audit and Governance Committee as per the Council’s Financial 
Regulations therefore no alternatives are available.

4.4.2 If the accounting policies are not amended to reflect changes in 
financial reporting requirements, there is a risk the 2018/19 Statement 
of Accounts may be qualified.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. There are no direct financial implications arising as a result of this report.

Risk and Policy Implications

There are no specific risk issues for members to consider arising from this 
report.

6.

Consultation

7. This report has been produced in consultation with the Council’s external 
auditors.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. For further information about 
this report or access to any 
background papers contact 
Stuart Smith

No1 Riverside Floor 2

For Further Information Contact: Stuart Smith (Resources Directorate), 
Tel: 01706 924196, 
stuart.smith@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 23



Appendix1 

Financial Instruments 

Financial Assets e.g. investments (excluding those in companies included in the 
Council’s group accounts) and debtors are classified into three types – amortised cost, 
fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and fair value through profit or 
loss (FVPL). 
The categorisation of financial assets into these types is dependent on the reason for 
holding these assets (to collect cash flows, to sell assets or achieve objectives by other 
means). 
Financial assets are brought onto the balance sheet at face value when the Council 
becomes a party to contractual provisions. 

Amortised Cost 
These assets relate to financial instruments where the amounts received relating to them 
are solely principal and interest and they are held to generate cash flows (e.g. 
investments of surplus cash with the government’s debt management office or loans to 
third parties). 

The interest received on these assets is spread over the life of these instruments. 
Any gain or loss in the value of these assets is recognised in the net surplus / deficit on 
the net provision of services at the point of derecognition (disposal) or reclassification. 

Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) 
These assets relate to financial instruments where the amounts received relating to them 
are solely principal and interest but they are held to collect cash and sell the assets.

The interest received on these assets is spread evenly over the life of these instruments. 
Changes in the fair value of these assets are charged to Other Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure. Cumulative gains and losses are charged to the surplus / deficit on 
provision of services when they are disposed of. 

Under capital accounting regulations where these assets were treated as capital 
expenditure the gain or loss are reversed to an unusable reserve - the Financial 
Instruments Revaluation. 

Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVPL) 
These assets relate to financial instruments where the amounts received relating to them 
are not principal and interest (e.g. equity investments). Dividends received are 
accounted for at the point they are received.

Charges in fair value are charged to the surplus / deficit on the net provision of services 
as they occur. 

Under capital accounting regulations where these assets were treated as capital 
expenditure the gain or loss is reversed through the Movement in Reserves Statement 
and charged to an unusable reserve - the Capital Adjustment Account. 

An equity instrument that has been classed as FVPL can be designated as FVOCI if it is 
not held for trading (e.g. a strategic investment). Once this designation has been made it 

Page 24



cannot be reversed. This designation would mean that any gains and losses would be 
held in the Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve. 

Credit loss 
The Council will recognise a loss allowance for expected credit losses, if applicable, on 
assets where cash flows are solely principal and interest (i.e. financial instruments 
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI unless they have been designated as such). This 
does not apply where the counterparty is central government or another local authority. 
At each year end the loss allowance for a financial instrument is calculated as equal to 
the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has 
increased significantly since initial recognition.  Only lifetime losses are recognised for 
trade receivables (debtors) held by the authority.

If at year end the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition the 
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to twelve month expected credit losses. 
Where the financial asset was treated as capital expenditure any losses will be reversed 
via the Movement in Reserves Statement to the Capital Adjustment Account. 

The Council has made a number of loans to individuals at less than market rates of 
interest (these are known as soft loans). When the loans are made the amount of 
interest forgone over the life of the loan is charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement (debited to the appropriate service line) and the outstanding 
principal is reduced on the Balance Sheet. This represents the present value of the 
interest that will be foregone over the life of the loan agreement. Statutory provisions 
require that the impact of the soft loans on the General Fund balance is the interest 
receivable in the year, so the amount of foregone interest charged is managed by a 
transfer from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account to the Movement in 
Reserves Statement. 

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is a sub-set of income and is defined as the gross inflow of economic benefits 
or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in an increase 
in net worth. 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. In 
most cases, the consideration receivable is in the form of cash and cash equivalents and 
the amount of revenue is the amount of cash and cash equivalents receivable. 

Where the Council is acting as an agent of another organisation the amounts collected 
for that organisation are excluded from revenue. 

Revenue is recognised when the performance obligations in a contract have been 
satisfied. This recognition can be over time when the service recipient simultaneously 
receives and consumes the benefits (e.g. home care services) or at a point in time. 

Revenue for Council Tax and Business Rates is recognised when the amount of 
revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable the revenue will be received by the 
Council. 

Page 25



Report to Audit and Governance Committee

Date of Meeting 08 April 2019
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Resources
Report Author Martin Nixon
Public/Private Document Public

Risk Management Progress Report - Q3 2018/19

Executive Summary

1. This report provides a summary of Risk Management and Insurance work 
during Quarter 3 of the 2018/19 year.

Work to implement the new Pentana software system has progressed during 
the quarter. Technical issues regarding data migration and system 
configuration have caused a delay to the originally planned April 2019 launch 
date. Information regarding the most significant risks recorded under RBC 
Service and Integrated Health & Social Care risk registers is provided within 
the report below. 

The Insurance Team achieved a claims cost mitigation figure of £1,216,328 for 
the quarter.

Recommendation

2. This report is for the information of Members to confirm the level of assurance 
provided through the management of risk and insurance services.

Reason for Recommendation

3. This report is to enable the Audit and Governance Committee, in accordance 
with their work programme and oversight of governance, to scrutinise Risk 
Management and Insurance Team coverage during the 2018/19 year for all 
Council Services.

Key Points for Consideration

4. Corporate Risk Register
The Leadership Team continue to proactively manage risks listed under the 
Corporate risk register. The Corporate risk register is attached as Appendix 1.

Page 26

Agenda Item 7



5.

5.1

5.2

Service Risk Management

Implementation of the Pentana Risk Software

The work of the Pentana Implementation Group has progressed during the 
current quarter, alongside colleagues in the Corporate Policy, ICT Services 
and HMR CCG teams. The new Pentana system was selected following a 
review of software products for the monitoring of performance and risk 
outcomes across the Council and CCG. 

The system administrators completed their training in February 2019, enabling 
the group to make further progress on design work. A review of the launch 
date is currently underway, with technical issues around data migration and 
configuration likely to cause a delay beyond the originally planned April 2019. 
Once implemented, the system will realise time savings due to the intuitive 
design of the risk module, increased flexibility in report writing, and better 
‘cloud-based’ coordination of shared Council/CCG objectives.

Integrated Care Risk Management

The project management team (PMO) of the Heywood Middleton and 
Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) has confirmed that work to 
finalise risk registers for each of the 39 Transformation projects is to be 
delayed until the implementation of the new Pentana risk system has been 
completed.

An update on operational risks was provided to the Integrated Commissioning 
Board (ICB) in the Transformation Highlight report on 29th January 2019. The 
following key risks were summarised –

 Clinical Pharmacists (Primary Care): Rochdale had been unable to recruit 
the full complement of clinical pharmacist posts. Following workshops and 
discussions the risk scores have been reduced and an action list for the 
development of 2019/20 work for clinical pharmacists is in place. 

 Planned Care: Previous high risks within this theme around the Integrated 
Elective Care Pathway (IECP) contract over performance and potential 
failure in achieving deflection targets still remain. Urgent work is ongoing to 
develop a detailed Planned Care work programme to deliver transformation 
benefits and support the savings programme.

 Transformation performance indicator (TPI) / outcomes tracking: The 
majority of themes reference ability to track and monitor activity and 
performance against defined TPI’s as a risk to intervention delivery. An 
Activity Monitoring Group has been set up to bring commissioners, 
business intelligence and performance closer together to provide improved 
analysis.

Page 27



5.3

6

6.1

 Mental Health Safe Haven – Contractor delays and the return of tenders 
over budget at Rochdale Infirmary has delayed the mobilisation of service 
delivery. Construction work cannot commence until the costs have been 
finalised. Pennine Acute are in the process of identifying contractor cost 
increases to resolve.

 One System Approach – the current position around overspend in 
children’s social care is preventing the demonstration of savings within this 
project (through the Family Services Model). Also the current Children’s 
Community service provider has indicated their intention to disinvest due to 
financial implications; making it necessary to explore different options.

Risk Management Results

Following the re-scoring of Service risks onto the new 5x5 risk-scoring matrix 
there are 3 Red risks to report -

Ref Service Risk Title

CSDR006
Children’s 
Services 

(Directorate)

Failure to manage within budget impacts the 
financial position of the Service and its ability to 
provide services

CSCR002 Children’s Social 
Care

Demand for a Children’s Social Care Service 
continues to increase, leading to failure to 
manage within budget

ASR0004 Adult Services Provider failure in terms of capacity, quality and 
business continuity.

Please note that variations in RAG risk scores should not be viewed purely as 
a reflection of the effectiveness of risk control activity - risk scoring is also 
influenced by the severity of risks associated with the different Services and 
their capacity to mitigate. Further details regarding the factors considered 
when scoring the risks and the mitigation actions being implemented are 
provided under Appendix 2.

Insurance Team

Performance
A summary of the work completed by the Insurance Team from October 2018 
to December 2018 is set out below.

The team received a total of 92 new claims notifications during quarter 3. This 
total can be divided between the various insurance classes – Highways (49), 
Motor (31), Other Public Liability (11), Employer’s Liability (1). This figure is a 
reduction in comparison to the 108 notifications received during Q3 2017/18.

A total of 185 claims were closed by the team during quarter 3. This figure can 
be divided between the insurance classes - Highways (141), Motor (13), Other 
Public Liability (27), Employer’s Liability (4). Closed claims will largely not be 
the same incidents as the newly notified claims referred to above. The claims 

Page 28



6.2

handling process can run over a period of months or years, and therefore the 
team are working on a combination of new and existing cases.

The claims cost mitigation figures displayed in the table below are calculated
by subtracting the final settled amounts for closed claims against the highest
reserve amounts for the same losses during the handling of the claims. These 
statistics are a useful measure of the level of challenge put forward by
the Insurance Team during their investigations, liaison with Council
Services, and joint work with solicitors to defend against legal proceedings

Claims Cost Mitigation Table for 2018/19 Q3

Month Claims Closed Cost 
Mitigation

October 100 £844,527.75

November 51 £258,098.70

December 34 £113,702.42

Total 185 £1,216,328.87

The table shows that the Insurance Team achieved a total cost mitigation of 
£1,216,328 on settled claims costs during Q3. Examples of claims where 
savings were made are –
i) £217,927.50 saved when a Highway flooding claim was successfully 

repudiated because the Authority was not liable.
ii) £89,300 saved when the severity of injuries were disputed for the 

compensation payment under a Motor claim.

Service Training Plan

The Insurance Team have a role to play in educating Council officers to both 
report incidents to the team in a manner that assists our investigations and any 
potential defence, and also to mitigate their insurable risks effectively. 
Gallagher Bassett offer accident investigation and risk health check sessions 
as part of their contracted claims handling service. 

Gallagher Bassett has completed the following series of sessions as part of 
their programme to be delivered during Q3/Q4 of 2018/19 - 

 Accident investigation Training (Environmental Management) 
 Accident investigation Training (Schools) – 3 sessions
 Accident investigation Training (Council managers) 
 Risk Management training (Events team)
 Risk Management Health Check (Highways)
 Employers Liability Risk Management Health Check

A tree management review has also taken place providing Environmental 
Management with a number of recommendations.

Page 29



7 Priorities for the Next Quarter

 Implementation of the Pentana risk/performance software. 

Costs and Budget Summary

8. Not applicable.

Risk and Policy Implications

If Risk Management recommendations are not implemented, the Council will 
be exposed to the risks set out in the relevant Risk Management reports. 
These risks will be mitigated by completion of the actions agreed with 
management and summarised within this report. 

9.

Consultation

10. The risk controls or development action points arising from this report are 
agreed in consultation with senior management and officers within each 
Service area.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

None

For Further Information Contact: Martin Nixon, Tel: 01706925415, 
martin.nixon@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 30



Rochdale Risk Report 21 March 2019

Wider Leadership Team - Corporate Risk Register Risk Summary

CRR0001 - Failure to maintain or gaps within corporate governance lead to risk of litigation, fraud/ malpractice, poor decision making or judicial review, causing serious 
service and financial failure (Compliance/ Legal) - (Operational)
Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

David Wilcock David Wilcock Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 2 6

01 Apr 2019

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR1007 Independent assurance provided by external assessors (Ofsted, Care Quality 
Commission etc.)   

Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 April 19

 *    CRR1013 Information Governance Framework which supports compliance with all data 
control requirements is embedded

John Rooney Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 June 19

 *    CRR1012 Performance Management system which promotes accountability and 
outcome monitoring is embedded

John Rooney Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 June 19

 *    CRR1002 Code of Corporate Governance communicated, understood and followed David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 19

 *    CRR1004 Governance Board providing challenge to and co-ordination of all governance 
issues   

David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 19

 *    CRR1006 Independent assurance provided by External Audit   David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 19

 *    CRR1010 Contract procedure rules which are clear, understood and being followed David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 19

 *    CRR1011 Codes of Conduct for Members and Officers which are clear, understood and 
followed

David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 19

 *    CRR1009 Scheme of delegation which is clear, understood and being followed Elaine Newsome Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 19

 *    CRR1005 Independent assurance provided by Internal Audit   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 28 Jun 19

 *    CRR1003 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 28 Jun 19

 *    CRR1001 Oversight and challenge by an effective Audit and Governance Committee Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 28 Jun 19

 *    CRR1008 Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy communicated, understood and followed Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 28 Jun 19

P
age 31



CRR0002 - A catastrophic event and lack of organisational resilience leads to inability to deliver our services, to then support and protect the wider community and to rebuild 
the infrastructure (Operational) - (Operational)
Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

John Rooney Mark Widdup Active Inherent 5 4 20

Residual 4 3 12

01 April 2019

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR2009 Review procedures for testing of ICT system to improve processes and 
resilience

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 April 19

 *    CRR2005 Emergency plan, refeshed annually, communicated and understood    Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 April 19

 *    CRR2006 Themed plans (i.e. rest centres, flooding, Turner Brothers site) for specific 
purposes   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 April 19

 *    CRR2007 Training, briefing and exercises carried out for Silver and Forward Incident 
officers

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 April 19

 *    CRR2008 Multi-agency resilience forum in place to debrief incidents and conduct 
exercises   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 April 19

 *    CRR2001 Corporate business continuity plan, refreshed and checked for accuracy 
annually   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 April 19

 *    CRR2002 Service level business continuity plans, refreshed and checked for accuracy 
quarterly   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 April 19

 *    CRR2004 Periodic corporate business continuity plan dry run exercises   Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 April 19

 *    CRR2003 Periodic training and briefing to service business continuity leads undertaken   Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 April 19

 *    CRR2010 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 19

CRR0003 - Budget reductions required do not leave enough budget to deliver statutory services and to achieve balanced budget in 2018/19 and 2019/20 leading to a failure 
in legal duty (Strategic) - (Operational)
Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Victoria Bradshaw Victoria Bradshaw Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 3 9

30 Apr 2019

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR3005 Corporate Plan established which provides strategic direction for services   Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 April 19

 *    CRR3001 Medium Term Financial Strategy updated bi-annually and approved by 
Cabinet and Council   

Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 19

 *    CRR3002 Regular reports to Wider Leadership, Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny, 
Council on budget position locally and nationally

Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 19

 *    CRR3004 Treasury Management Policy embedded and adhered to Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 19

 *    CRR3007 s151 Officer Report presented to Council annually prior to budget setting   Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 19

 *    CRR3009 Corporate approach to addressing budget challenges (offices and Members Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 19

P
age 32



working together)   

 *    CRR3010 External audit financial resilience assessment   Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 19

 *    CRR3003 Budget monitoring embedded which pro-actively highlights financial 
challenges   

Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 19

 *    CRR3008 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 19

 *    CRR3006 Organisational Development Strategy in place which aligns strategy, people 
and processes   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 24 Jun 15 01 Apr 19

CRR0004  - Ineffective financial management and resilience leads to the Council significantly overspending the annual budget (Strategic) - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Victoria Bradshaw Victoria Bradshaw Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 2 6

30 Apr 2019

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR4005 Corporate Plan established which provides strategic direction for services   Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 April 19

 *    CRR4006 Organisational Development Strategy in place which aligns strategy, people 
and processes   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 19

 *    CRR4001 Medium Term Financial Strategy updated bi-annually and approved by 
Cabinet and Council   

Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 19

 *    CRR4002 Regular reports to Wider Leadership, Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny, 
Council on budget position locally and nationally

Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 19

 *    CRR4004 Treasury Management Policy embedded and adhered to Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 19

 *    CRR4007 s151 Officer Report presented to Council annually prior to budget setting   Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 19

 *    CRR4009 Corporate approach to addressing budget challenges (officers and Members 
working together)   

Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 19

 *    CRR4010 External audit financial resilience assessment   Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 19

 *    CRR4003 Budget monitoring embedded which pro-actively highlights financial 
challenges   

Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 19

 *    CRR4008 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 19

P
age 33



CRR0005 - Failure of, or lack of compliance with, health and safety systems leads to harm to an individual and a corporate manslaughter/ homicide conviction (Compliance/ 
Legal) - (Operational)
Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Neil Thornton Active Inherent 4 3 12

Residual 4 2 8

01 April 2019

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR5006 Member training regularly updated, fully attended and understood   Elaine Newsome Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 19

 *    CRR5002 Learning and development provided to whole workforce, primarily through e-
learning   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 19

 *    CRR5003 Comprehensive health and well-being policies in place and adhered to   Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 19

 *    CRR5001 Corporate Health and Safety Policy is clear, understood and being followed   Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 19

 *    CRR5004 In house team of Health and Safety Advisers who link into the Central Health 
and Safety Committee   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 19

 *    CRR5005 Liaison with Health and Safety Executive to ensure risk and issues highlighted 
and addressed   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 19

 *    CRR5007 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 19

CRR0006 - Risk that Council and Devolution  Manchester priorities are not fully aligned - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Steve Rumbelow Steve Rumbelow Active Inherent 4 3 12

Residual 4 2 8

01 April 2019

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR6001 Chief Executive is a member of AGMA WLT (Meeting of GM Chief Executives)   Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 01 April 19

 *    CRR6002 Leader is a member of formally constituted GM Combined Authority with other 
Council Leaders and Interim Mayor   

Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 01 April 19

 *    CRR6003 Elected members from Rochdale BC sit on Scrutiny Panel   Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 01 April 19

 *    CRR6004 Officer representation on working groups dealing with CA/AGMA/Devolution 
issues as appropriate   

Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 01 April 19

P
age 34



CRR0007 - Risk of a breakdown in community stability (Operational)                   - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

John Rooney Mark Widdup Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 4 3 12

01 Apr 2019

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR7003 Extensive partnerships developed and maintained enabling networking and 
intelligence sharing eg. Active citizens and multi-faith forums.

Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 April 19

 *    CRR7004  Joint working with GM authorities to monitor and mitigate risks    Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 April 19

 *    CRR7007 Cohesion Hub and Consequence Management process in place Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 April 19

 *    CRR7008 Weekly tension monitoring and trigger plans in place Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 April 19

 *    The partnership Consequence Management Group (CMG) exists to provide early 
intervention on community tensions and develop cohesion and diversionary activities.

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 April 19

 *    CRR7002 Community Cohesion Pledge signed by elected Members & Community Reps   Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 19

 *    CRR7009 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 19

CRR0008 - Risk of serious harm to or death of a child due to the act or omission by Council employees (Compliance/ Legal)           - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Gail Hopper Gail Hopper Active Inherent 5 4 20

Residual 5 3 15

30 Apr 2019

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR8001 Local Safeguarding Children Board in place which provides robust challenge   Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 April 19

 *    CRR8003 Regional Support and Challenge including Peer Reviews Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 April 19

 *    CRR8004 Performance/ Quality Assurance Framework is fully embedded   Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 April 19

 *    CRR8005 Ongoing and robust management of external/ commissioned service providers Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 April 19

 *    CRR8006 Effective management oversight and supervision of staff   Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 April 19

 *    CRR8009 Critical Incident Reporting Framework in place and embedded Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 April 19

 *    CRR8010 Workforce Development Strategy - training and support provided to staff Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 April 19

 *    CRR8011 LA provides advice/ monitoring and training on safe practice in schools Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 April 19

 *    CRR8002 Independent Ofsted inspections   Sandra Bowness Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 April 19

 *    CRR8007 Early Help Strategy is refreshed and re-launched   Sandra Bowness Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Mar 19

 *    CRR8012 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 19

P
age 35



CRR0009 - Risk of serious harm to or death of a vulnerable adult due to the act or omission by Council employees (Compliance Legal)  - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Sally McIvor Active Inherent 5 4 20

Residual 5 3 15

30 Apr 2019

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR9001 Adult Safeguarding Board in place which provides robust challenge   Sally McIvor Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 April 19

 *    CRR9008 Regional support and peer challenge    Sally McIvor Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 April 19

 *    CRR9004 PDRs, one-to-ones and supervision of staff, self assessment of practice 
standards applied across the service   

Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 19

 *    CRR9005 Embed adult social care safeguarding policy to ensure worker expectations 
regarding safeguarding practice are clearly defined and communicated  

Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 19

 *    CRR9006 Robust and regular safeguarding and case file audits   Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 19

 *    CRR9002 Independent reviews by the Care Quality Commission (CQC)   Tracey Harrison Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 19

 *    CRR9007 Robust quality assurance/ contract management procedures Tracey Harrison Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 19

 *    CRR9010 Ongoing sharing of intelligence information with CQC and other partners Tracey Harrison Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 19

 *    CRR9011 Training strategy in place for the Service Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 19

 *    CRR9012 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 19

CRR0010 -  Failure to take opportunities for growth leading to a lack of investment in the Borough and lower levels of regeneration and prosperity       - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

John Searle John Searle Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 3 9

01 April 2019

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR10004 Asset Management Plan is established, monitored and regularly updated   Peter Gregory Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jan 19

 *    CRR10006 Maximise opportunities for good news   Susan Ayres Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 28 Feb 19

 *    CRR10007 Early warning protocol agreed for identifying potential bad news Susan Ayres Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 28 Feb 19

 *    CRR10002 Oversight and challenge of major projects and decisions by Corporate 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee   

Mark Robinson Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 19

 *    CRR10003 Programme/ project management principles are applied consistently   Mark Robinson Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 19

 *    CRR10001 Medium Term Financial Plan is comprehensive and regularly updated   Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 19

 *    CRR10005 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 19

P
age 36



P
age 37



APPENDIX 2

High-Scoring Service Risks

Risk ref Service Risk Risk Owner Impact Likelihood Residual Risk 
Score

CSDR006 Children’s Services 
(Directorate)

Failure to manage within budget impacts the financial position of the 
Service and its ability to provide services Gail Hopper 4 4 16

 Main reasons for the Red risk score?  Locally, predicted pressures are being experienced as a result of an increase in demand for social care services generally, numbers of children with 
child protection plans, increase in care proceedings, the number of cared for children and continuing increase in demand for children with special educational needs and/or disabilities 
(SEND). This reflects the picture both regionally and nationally.

 What have been the significant controls implemented to mitigate this risk?  A Business Case for increased resources in line with areas of increased demand in children’s social care has 
been agreed; this has been worked upon with Finance colleagues and has been considered at informal Cabinet, the ICB and is to be presented to Cabinet for a formal decision. A five year 
sustainability strategy has also been developed, with key components to increase placement sufficiency through innovation and market management.

 Are any reductions in the risk score anticipated in the future?  The Senior Leadership Team regularly considers budget pressures collectively and in their separate management 
meetings. There are monthly meetings with the Chief Executive, the 151 Officer and Director of Resources, as well as regular meetings with the Leader and Portfolio Holder. This residual 
risk will be reviewed again at the end of Q4. 

Risk ref Service Risk Risk Owner Impact Likelihood Residual Risk 
Score

CSCR002 Children’s Social Care Demand for a Children’s Social Care Service continues to increases, 
leading to failure to manage within budget Jill McGregor 4 4 16

 Main reasons for the Red risk score?  The growing child population is causing increased budget pressure in children’s social care and in the additional needs service (SEND). This reflects 
similar demands across the country. 91% of children’s services budgets overspent nationally in 2018/19 ( Rochdale did not overspend last year).

 What have been the significant controls implemented to mitigate this risk?  A five year sustainability strategy has been developed by reviewing and mapping levels of need and 
implications; reviewing the research and evidence base of what works; reviewing all children in external placements and working up a detailed investment strategy. This involves a 
Greater Manchester approach to implementing successful innovation programmes that have been successful elsewhere in the country. Progress is being made in Rochdale to develop 
these approaches, but will take time to deliver impact.

 Are any reductions in the risk score anticipated in the future? The sustainability strategy will over time support greater likelihood of managing demand within the designated budget. 
What the Service is unable to predict is those demands emerging from children new to the authority. In the period between September and December almost 500 children new to the 
country and to the borough required school places – what isn’t yet known about these children is what level of social care needs they may present moving forward. These increases have 
been experienced in the borough consistently over the last 3 years, but the 18/19 figures are much higher than in previous years (50% increase).

Risk ref Service Risk Risk Owner Impact Likelihood Residual Risk 
Score

ASR0004 Adult Services Provider failure in terms of capacity, quality and business continuity. Tracey Harrison 4 4 16

 Main reasons for the Red risk score?  The Likelihood score was increased to 4 due to local issues in the provider market.
 What have been the significant controls implemented to mitigate this risk?  Key controls include – Contingency plan in place across Northwest ADASS, working closely as part of the GM 

Market Fragility Group, and a full review of the home care framework in Rochdale.
 Are any reductions in the risk score anticipated in the future?  The wider provider risk remains with many changes happening within the providers causing investors to be unsettled.

P
age 38



Report to Audit and Governance Committee

Date of Meeting 8th April 2019
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Resources
Report Author Ian Corbridge
Public/Private Document Public

Internal Audit Quarter 3 Report 2018/19

Executive Summary

1. This report summarises the work of the Internal Audit team during the third 
quarter of 2018/19. Internal Audit was able to provide either substantial or 
adequate assurance over the effectiveness of risk management in all the 
audits completed during the period with the exception of one school which 
received a limited assurance opinion due to weaknesses in the control 
environment. However, an action plan has been agreed with school 
management which should ensure a more robust control environment is 
established going forward. Furthermore, Internal Audit has completed 75% of 
the agreed Audit Plan and is on track to achieve the targeted completion of the 
Audit Plan of 96% by the year end.

The Counter Fraud Team achieved £33,073 in identifying savings and 
overpayments during the period (£510,429 for the 9 months to 31 December 
2018) together with 2 sanctions comprising 2 fines for fraud. 

Recommendation

2. This report is for the information of the Members to confirm the level of 
assurance provided through Internal Audit work of the management of risk.

Reason for Recommendation

3. This report is to enable the Audit and Governance Committee, in 
accordance with their work programme and overall responsibility for 
governance, to scrutinise Internal Audit coverage during the third quarter of 
2018/19 on all Services within the Council. The work of RBC Internal Audit 
is governed by the UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.

Page 39

Agenda Item 8



Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1 

4.2

4.3

4.4

Risk Based Audit Approach

10. Internal Audit is responsible for providing an annual opinion on the 
internal control environment, risk management and governance 
processes for the Council as a whole, as set out within the Internal Audit 
Charter. A risk based approach is taken within individual audit reviews, 
embracing operational and management controls and the wider 
business risks. This allows an opinion to be expressed on risk 
identification and exposure and the adequacy of systems in place to 
manage those risks. 

In each Internal Audit report Internal Audit provides a clear audit assurance 
opinion on how effectively risks are being managed in the area under 
review. These opinions are as follows:

Assurance 
Opinion

Explanation

Limited
A number of key risks are not managed effectively. 
The control systems in operation are in need of 
significant improvement.

Adequate
The control systems in operation are generally 
sound. However, opportunities exist to improve the 
management of some risks.

Substantial There is a sound system of control in operation to 
manage risks effectively.

In terms of the Internal Audit follow up process to provide Members with 
the assurance that agreed recommendations have been implemented on a 
timely basis, any ‘red’ reports on which we can provide only limited 
assurance will be highlighted within section 6 of this report. These will be 
subject to specific discussion and challenge by Members with senior 
officers from the relevant Service. Thereafter, Internal Audit will perform a 
formal follow up audit within a six month period or sooner if the due date for 
completing the agreed actions is earlier and report back to the Audit and 
Governance Committee with our findings.

In terms of any ‘adequate’ or ‘substantial’ assurance opinions, all high and 
medium priority actions will be followed up by Internal Audit to confirm 
completion once the due dates have passed. Any delays in implementation 
will be reported to the Committee for further consideration. If some of the 
recommendations have not yet been actioned, Internal Audit will request 
reasons for the delay and confirmation of a revised date by which the 
action should be completed. The current status of the implementation of 
audit recommendations as confirmed by formal follow up audits is 
highlighted within Appendix B and any key issues will be highlighted to the 
Members. Whilst in some cases implementation has not been achieved by 
the originally agreed dates, Internal Audit has received reasonable 

Page 40



4.5

5

5.1

6

6.1

6.2

6.3

explanations to support the delays incurred and will continue to monitor 
progress through to the revised dates proposed by management. As such, 
there are no matters to bring to the attention of Members at this stage.

Draft reports are issued to management with the requirement that formal 
responses to recommendations raised are received within one month of 
the issue date. Internal Audit actively follows up with management via an 
escalation process to ensure that the reports and actions are agreed in a 
timely manner. At present, there are no draft reports where responses are 
still outstanding beyond the agreed period.

Planned Work Completed During Quarter Three 

Appendix A contains the details of planned audit reviews completed 
during quarter three which had an ‘adequate’ or ‘substantial’ assurance 
opinion. Key areas for improvement are summarised for each audit with 
a specific focus on any agreed actions designated as high priority.

Audit Reviews with ‘Limited’ assurance opinions and Follow Up 
Audits

Primary School
  (Director – Children’s Services)

In November 2018 an audit was undertaken on a primary school which 
highlighted weaknesses in fundamental internal controls and a limited 
assurance opinion was given. A substantial number of recommendations 
were made, including 2 of high priority and 11 of medium priority, to 
address improvements that needed to be made to the system of internal 
control to ensure it aligns with best practice.

The high priority actions agreed were associated with the need to:
Enhance budget monitoring and cash flow arrangements to provide 

more direct control over the schools finances and mitigate the risks of 
continuing budgetary pressures; and

Formally assess the financial skills and knowledge of staff with 
financial management responsibilities to ensure they are sufficient to 
manage the schools finances. This will facilitate the development and 
provision of any appropriate training needs. 

Further issues were identified which contributed to our opinion and from 
which an action plan was derived, including the following:
 Budget approval needs to be formally documented;
 A Debt Recovery Policy should be developed and implemented to 

mitigate against the risk of irrecoverable debts arising;
 Purchasing processes should be reviewed to ensure appropriate 

segregation of duties;
 Business Interest forms must be obtained annually and taken into 

account in any future procurement exercises to avoid any potential 
challenges to decisions made;

 Expenditure through the school fund must be closely monitored to 

Page 41



6.4

6.5

7

7.1

7.2

ensure it remains appropriate;
 Where the services of self-employed personnel are used by the school, 

their employment status must be formally assessed via the HMRC 
assessment tool;

 All overtime payments must be properly approved and supported by 
appropriate documentation; and

 All meeting minutes should clearly evidence the challenge by or 
decisions made by the Governors. 

Internal Audit will continue to monitor the progress made in relation to the 
agreed actions and perform a follow up audit in 2019 and confirm the 
status to Members.

The current status of all follow up audits is summarised in Appendix B. 

Unplanned work

Property Development
  (Director – Economy)

At the request of management, Internal Audit reviewed the processes and 
controls relating to certain procurement transactions associated with a 
property development to provide assurance that they remained effective 
and in line with RBC’s Contract Procedure Rules (CPRs). 

As a result of the review and the audit checks carried out, two main 
recommendations were agreed with management to ensure that:

 A detailed financial assessment is carried out for the development to 
inform any proposals on the future operation of the site; and

 CPRs are complied with at all times, specifically in relation to 
applying exemptions where these are deemed appropriate. 

 
Organisations Funded By Public Money
  (Director – Economy)

At the request of management and in line with the standard policy of 
performing financial and governance audits of external organisations which 
receive funding from the Council with a view to ensuring proper 
accountability of public funds, Internal Audit carried out a review of financial 
controls within one such external organisation.

As with all such small organisations, Internal Audit recognised that we 
could not expect the same level of controls and segregation of duties as 
would be expected in a larger organisation. However, there were areas of 
financial control that can be improved specifically in relation to cash 
handling and various recommendations were agreed with management to 
enhance financial controls.

Page 42



8

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

Counter Fraud Team

A summary of the work completed by the Counter Fraud Team from 
October to December 2018 is set out below.

Performance

A total of 144 fraud referrals were received in the third quarter of this 
financial year, compared to 249 from the same period in 2017/18. There 
has been a noticeable difference in the amount of referrals received 
compared with the previous year which may be due to staff changes in a 
number of areas including within RBC service areas and external 
enforcement agencies. The referrals are currently being reviewed and work 
will take place to generate more referrals including fraud awareness 
training. The main sources of these referrals came from the National Fraud 
Initiative (NFI), the Partnership Enforcement Team, anonymous information 
and RBC employees. A significant number of these do not progress to 
formal investigation by the team as they are either passed to the DWP or 
closed due to apparent malicious intent or the fact that there is not enough 
information to progress the matter. 

From October to December 2018 the team achieved £32,073 in additional 
savings and overpayments. This figure derives from successful 
investigations into transactions associated with a number of Service areas 
including Benefits, Council Tax, Business Rates, Blue Badge and Adult 
Care, as well as additional income from fraud financial penalties, 
administrative penalties and court costs. 

86% of referrals have resulted in positive outcomes in the third quarter. 

2 sanctions were achieved in quarter three, comprising of 2 fines for fraud. 

National Fraud Initiative (NFI)

The Counter Fraud Team is one of several sections within the Council that 
have an important role to play in checking data matches that are received 
from the NFI.  

The Team have continued to check the data received in the 2017/18 NFI 
Single Person Discount, Council Tax matches. Over £10,000 in savings 
were achieved from the NFI proactive visits.    

The NFI Housing Benefit work is drawing to an end. The recommended 
matches have been checked and samples of the key reports have also 
been checked. In relation to the next data match for Housing Benefit NFI, 
the Counter Fraud Teams within DWP and Local Authorities will receive 
any relevant data to check early 2019.  

Rochdale Borough Council Business Rates Team and Counter Fraud 
Team have been participating in the Business Rates Fraud NFI Pilot. To 

Page 43



8.10

8.11

8.12

8.13

9

9.1

date the Counter Fraud team have found savings of over £9,000.

Partnership Enforcement Team (PET)

The Counter Fraud Team not only investigates cases of fraud, but also 
provides a wealth of advice across the Council to services and to external 
bodies including immigration and the police.  Replies have been made to 
over 150 Data Protection Requests from October to December 2018, not 
including the work that is completed in the PET. 

Referrals from different teams are brought to the PET weekly meeting each 
Monday to discuss and work on together.  A combination of intelligence, 
skills and powers from the different enforcement agencies are used to 
prevent and detect fraud within the Borough. Currently the following cross-
agency teams attend the weekly meeting: GMP – Organised Crime Team; 
Divisional Tasking Team, Rochdale BC – Children’s Services; Community 
Cohesion & Equality; Community Safety; Fraud; Public Protection; 
Strategic Housing, DWP – Fraud, RBH – Enforcement, Fire Service 
officials.

The Counter Fraud Team also dealt with over 35 ‘police checks’ on 
Rochdale BC systems, to help the police trace alleged offenders and 
absconders. In addition, 1 fraud referral has been closed with a positive 
saving relating to single person discount.        
  
The experienced investigators continue to participate in days of action and 
proactive visits resulting in savings being generated in respect of Council 
Tax, Business Rates, Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support.

Internal Audit Performance Measures

The table below shows actual performance as at 31 December 2018 
against Internal Audit targets for the third quarter, including the actuals for 
2017/18. 

Performance Indicator Actual 
 Year 

2017/18

Target 
Q3

2018/19

Actual 
Q3

2018/19
Economy
1. Cost per Audit Day – excluding 
overheads

£240 £260 £250

Efficiency
2. Chargeable days per auditor 
(days)

195 190 194

3. Percentage of audit plan 
completed (96% for full year)

96% 74% 75%

4. Percentage of draft audit reports 
issued within 14 days of 

100% 98% 100%

Page 44



9.2

completion of the audit
Performance Indicator Actual 

 Year 
2017/18

Target 
Q3

2018/19

Actual 
Q3

2018/19
Effectiveness
5. Percentage of recommendations 
accepted

100% 98% 100%

6. Results of client surveys - % of 
marks in the top two categories 
(i.e. very good & good)

100% 98% 100%

  
All performance indicators were either achieved or were ahead of target for 
the period.  

10  Traded Services Provided by Internal Audit

10.1 Internal Audit continues to undertake audit work for a number of organisations 
in accordance with Traded Services agreements, thereby generating external 
income for the Authority. In 2018/19 to 31 December 2018 this has generated 
income of £2,660 and has included: 

 Audit of School Fund Accounts for 4 schools under Local Authority 
control; and

 Grant certification for an Academy.

Costs and Budget Summary

11. Not applicable.

Risk and Policy Implications

If Internal Audit recommendations are not implemented, the Council will be 
exposed to the risks set out in the relevant detailed Internal Audit reports. 
These risks will be mitigated by completion of the actions agreed with 
management and summarised within this report. Internal Audit 
recommendations are raised as a result of weaknesses identified during 
reviews and therefore such identified issues impact upon compliance and 
governance.

12.

Consultation

13. The recommendations and actions arising from audit reviews are agreed in 
consultation with relevant senior management and officers within each 
Service area.

Page 45



Background Papers Place of Inspection

None

For Further Information Contact: Ian Corbridge, Tel: 01706925452, 
ian.corbridge@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 46



Appendix A
Planned audits completed in quarter three

Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Integrated Health 
and Care 

Commissioning

Transformation/ 
Locality Plan 

Review

Summary of audit performed by Mersey Internal Audit Agency
A review was undertaken in relation to the processes to deliver the 
Transformation/ Locality Plan. A key aim of the Rochdale Locality Plan is 
that “by 2021 we want more people to be in control of their own health and 
wellbeing, manage their long term conditions well and being supported to 
achieve good health and wellbeing across their life”. An application for 
funding from the GM Health and Social Care Partnership of £25.63 million 
was successful and a Programme Management Office was established to 
manage related transformation programmes with oversight by the 
Transformation Delivery Board.

The audit concluded that there is a good system of internal control 
designed to meet the system objectives. It also demonstrated that the 
organisation maintains a high focus on the controls and risks associated 
with the complexities and evolving nature of the Transformation 
Programme. Evidence indicates that controls are good and continually 
improving. Governance arrangements are clear, established and operating 
effectively. One action was agreed to improve risk reporting and ensure 
mitigating actions are recorded in project based risk reports.

Substantial L – 1 

P
age 47



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Children’s Unaccompanied 
Asylum Seeking 
Children (UASC)

UASCs are children who arrive in the UK without their parents or carers 
and are seeking asylum and are therefore classed within legislation as “in 
need”. UASCs are entitled to financial assistance and the local authority 
may apply to the Home Office for funding. This audit focused on evaluating 
financial controls and ensuring compliance with legislation and Financial 
Regulations.

Overall the audit provided substantial assurance that all key risks are 
being managed effectively. It was agreed that budgets for the service will 
be realigned to more accurately reflect the various services provided and 
enhance financial management.

Substantial M – 1,
L – 2  

Children’s Pupil Premium 
Plus (PP+)

PP+ is funding allocated to local authorities to help raise the attainment of 
Looked After Children as well as pupils who have left care through 
adoption or Special Guardianship Orders. PP+ is initiated from a child’s 
Personal Education Plan (PEP) and the school must ensure the money is 
spent in line with the PEP objectives. The audit focused on evaluating the 
allocation, monitoring and impact of the funding in 5 schools.

Internal Audit concluded that there are generally effective arrangements in 
place for allocating funding and monitoring systems are in place to ensure 
that schools spend the funding on interventions that meet the needs 
identified in the PEPs. A small number of improvements were agreed 
including the need to improve the audit trail with regard to improvements in 
attainment arising from the interventions. 

Adequate M – 3,
L – 1 

P
age 48



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Economy/ 
Neighbourhoods

Place Based 
Working – 

Integrated Place 
Team (IPT)

The IPT responds to the Public Service Reform agenda and the need to 
deliver effective services with reduced budgets. The focus is on a more 
integrated way of working involving various organisations and targeting 
groups of people/ specific parts of the Borough that are more vulnerable. 
Based on the projects progressing so far, the audit focused on evaluating 
the work of the team to ensure expected outcomes were being delivered.

The audit confirmed that the IPT was operating efficiently and effectively 
and is supported by appropriate mechanisms for monitoring and reporting. 
The only action agreed was to ensure associated risks are captured on the 
Risk Register system for ongoing monitoring.

Substantial M – 1 

Neighbourhoods Greater 
Manchester Road 
Activities Permit 

Scheme 
(GMRAPS)

RBC is part of GMRAPS, the first joint permitting scheme in England, 
operated by TfGM and the 10 GM LA Highway Authorities. The scheme 
requires that any person or organisation wishing to carry out road or street 
works or other registerable activities on streets within GM must obtain the 
required permit. The audit provided assurance on whether policies and 
regulations were being complied with and the overall process is 
adequately managed.

The audit confirmed that GMRAPS had been successfully introduced 
within RBC and there was a good level of compliance with agreed 
procedures. However there were examples of where appropriate 
information was not being displayed on site and an action was agreed to 
ensure this was addressed through the contract management process.

Adequate H – 1

P
age 49



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Neighbourhoods Public Services 
Network (PSN)

The PSN is the government’s high-performance network, which helps 
public sector organisations work together, reduce duplication and share 
resources.  Being connected to the PSN is very important for Rochdale 
Council as it is used to securely access and share information with other 
government and public sector organisations such as DWP, NHS and 
Cabinet Office.  Connection to the PSN is subject to an annual external 
compliance regime whereby the Council has to complete a statement to 
the effect that it complies with a certain set of requirements.  Importantly, 
appropriate evidence also has to be supplied in order to substantiate the 
statements made.  

In advance of RBC’s statement being submitted to the Cabinet Office, 
Internal Audit met with relevant staff from ICT Services with responsibility 
for the PSN to establish whether appropriate arrangements were in place 
to ensure that the statement and supporting evidence provided to the 
Cabinet Office were as comprehensive as possible in order to minimise the 
risk of ongoing connection to the PSN not being approved. Internal Audit 
was satisfied this was the case prior to the Chief Executive duly signing off 
the statement on 15th November 2018, prior to it being submitted to the 
Cabinet Office for consideration.  On the 18th March 2019 the relevant 
officer from ICT Services confirmed to Internal Audit that the Cabinet 
Office has approved the Council’s PSN connection for a further year, the 
new expiry date being 19 February 2020. Whilst some non-high priority 
residual remedial tasks are still to be actioned by staff in ICT Services, 
these were not significant and had no impact on the PSN submission 
being approved. 

Substantial None 

P
age 50



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Neighbourhoods Green Lane 
Stores

This audit focused on evaluating the financial controls over the workshop/ 
transport stores operation to ensure appropriate optimisation of income 
streams, authorisation of transactions and timely processing of payments.

Whilst controls overall were assessed to be adequate, there were a 
number of improvements required to improve arrangements in stock 
control, income management, record keeping and internal recharges in 
order to fulfil the objectives of the service. More fundamentally 
management has acknowledged that the current stores IT system was not 
functioning as expected or required and a commitment to replace this 
system has already been made. A review of this new system by Internal 
Audit will be included within the 2019/20 Internal Audit Plan.

Adequate H – 4,
M – 10,

L - 3 

Resources Universal Credit With effect from 16 May 2018, RBC moved to Full Service Universal Credit 
as part of the government’s welfare reform programme. This should 
reduce housing benefit caseloads as new claims for housing benefit, other 
than those covered by certain exemptions, are no longer accepted. The 
audit focused on providing assurance that regulations, policies and 
procedures are being complied with and claimants are being paid the 
correct benefit.

The audit concluded that effective controls and processes are in place and 
no recommendations were made.

Substantial None

P
age 51



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Resources Compliance with 
Contract 

Procedure Rules

Summary of audit performed by Stockport Council Internal Audit in relation 
to Stockport, Trafford and Rochdale.
A review was undertaken to evaluate compliance with the requirements for 
the procurement of supply, services and concessions, including exemption 
rules as set out within the Contract Procedure Rules (CPRs). It also 
included retention of supporting documentation and the roll out of training 
material.

With regard to procurements above OJEU thresholds audit testing 
indicated that local authorities are complying with CPRs and exemption 
rules. However with regard to procurements below OJEU thresholds, there 
was evidence of non-compliance with CPRs and no clear and robust 
mechanism for both identifying and reporting on non-compliance with 
CPRs across the 3 Council’s. The main recommendations which are being 
progressed by STAR focused on ensuring:

 All key staff are provided with appropriate training and updates on 
the application of CPRs; and

 A robust data analysis process is developed which will support an 
ongoing evaluation of compliance with CPRs within each Council.

Adequate H – 2,
M – 1 

P
age 52



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Resources Payroll This audit of the payroll system focused on the application of the 
Graduated Mandatory Unpaid Leave (GMUL) scheme to provide 
assurance that it has been administered correctly.

Whilst the audit testing indicated that controls are generally sound there 
were a number of issues that need to be addressed to ensure appropriate 
and accurate adjustments to leave entitlement are processed in the future, 
including:

 The need to evaluate iTrent to determine if the relevant GMUL 
entitlement can be automated within the system;

 The need to update guidance notes to avoid errors being made in 
the calculation of GMUL entitlement; and

 The need to correct errors made in relation to unpaid leave pay 
bandings within the system.

Adequate M – 4,
L - 3

Resources Council Tax Council tax processes were audited as one of the Council’s key financial 
systems. The objectives focused on ensuring discounts and exemptions 
are awarded appropriately, supported by documentary evidence, are 
calculated correctly and are monitored for ongoing validity.

The audit concluded that Council Tax discounts and exemptions are being 
correctly applied, although a minor issue was identified where statutory 
discounts had not been applied before local ones as required by statute 
which has now been addressed.
 

Substantial M – 2,
L - 1

P
age 53



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Various Grant 
Certifications

Certain grants available to RBC require periodic certification to confirm that 
the grants have been spent in accordance with grant terms and conditions. 
These certifications generally require sign off by the Head of Internal Audit 
together with either the Chief Executive or Chief Finance Officer. During 
quarter three, the following grant certifications were signed off in this way: 

 Highways Incentive Funding 2019/20. 

Internal Audit performed various independent checks to ensure that grant 
certifications could be signed off and no issues arose from this work.

Substantial None

P
age 54



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Children’s Services 
- Schools

3 Primary 
Schools

1 Nursery

These comprised reviews of the schools exposure to risk using the Ofsted 
document “Keeping your balance”, also taking account of other service 
areas and the extent of schools’ implementation of previous 
recommendations. 
Boarshaw Community Primary
Littleborough Primary
St. Luke’s CE Primary
Sunny Brow Nursery

Three high priority recommendations were made to ensure that:
 Any agreements where school staff undertake additional employment in 

addition to their school duties are supported by appropriate agreements 
in relation to their remuneration, taxation, time and costs; and

 Valid VAT invoices are obtained in all instances where VAT is claimed.

A number of other actions were agreed to improve processes and controls 
including ensuring that:
 The Finance Policy remains up to date and reflective of all current 

processes;
 Purchase orders are raised at the point of requisition;
 Registers of Business Interests are maintained and kept up to date; 
 Debt recovery policies are established to ensure outstanding debts are 

managed effectively;
 Governors meetings are held on a periodic basis and supported by 

detailed minutes to ensure their responsibilities are discharged; and
 The school Development Plan should include costing for all 

development areas.

A further primary school was audited during the period and received a 
limited assurance opinion. This is summarised in Section 6.

Substantial – 
2

Adequate - 2

H – 3,
M – 18,
L – 15 

P
age 55



Appendix B
FOLLOW UP OF OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – STATUS AS AT 26 MARCH 2019

Report Assurance Service 
High and 

Medium priority 
actions 

Final Date 
for 

Completion 
Follow up 

date 
Actions 

Complete
Actions 
Still in 

Progress 
Notes on Follow Up 

Audit

Highways Contract 
Management A Neighbourhoods 15 31/07/2017 03/12/2018 9 6 Further follow up in 

progress 

Cyber Security A Neighbourhoods 11 31/03/2018 11/01/2018 5 6

Revised date of 31st 
October 2018 for 
completion of the 

outstanding 
recommendations. Further 

follow up in progress.

STAR Quality 
Management Systems A Resources 1 30/09/2018    To be followed up in 

quarter 4 2018/19

ICT Access Controls A Neighbourhoods 5 31/10/2018    Follow up in progress

Greater Manchester Road 
Activities Permit Scheme A Neighbourhoods 1 31/01/2019    Follow up in progress

Section 106 Planning 
Obligations A Economy 2 31/01/2019    

First meeting of the new 
S106 Steering Group to 
take place on 19 March 

2019

Statutory Compliance In 
Property A Economy 9 31/03/2019    To be followed up in 

2019/20

Council Website A Neighbourhoods 7 31/03/2019    To be followed up in 
2019/20

P
age 56



Report Assurance Service 
High and 

Medium priority 
actions 

Final Date 
for 

Completion 
Follow up 

date 
Actions 

Complete
Actions 
Still in 

Progress 
Notes on Follow Up 

Audit

Connected Council 
Programme A Neighbourhoods 5 31/03/2019    To be followed up in 

2019/20

IT Disaster Recovery  L Neighbourhoods 5 31/03/2019    
Update presented to AGC 

on 8 April 2019

Commercial Investment 
Fund A Economy 7 31/03/2019    To be followed up in 

2019/20

Payroll A Resources 4 31/03/2019    To be followed up in 
2019/20

Green Lane Stores A Neighbourhoods 12 31/03/2019    To be followed up in 
2019/20

Highways Winter Service S Neighbourhoods 11 31/05/2019    To be followed up in 
2019/20

Review of Compliance with 
Contract Procedure Rules A Resources 3 31/05/2019    To be followed up in 

2019/20
CHEST Procurement 
Portal A Resources 10 30/06/2019 25/03/19 6 4 To be followed up in 

2019/20

Contracts Register A Resources 8 30/06/2019    To be followed up in 
2019/20

Primary School L Children’s 13 30/09/2019  22/03/19  12 1 Remaining action due to 
be completed shortly

Pupil Premium Plus A Children’s 3 30/09/2019    To be followed up in 
2019/20

 

P
age 57



Report to Audit and Governance Committee

Date of Meeting 8th April 2019
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Resources
Report Author Ian Corbridge
Public/Private Document Public

Internal Audit Plan 2019/20

Executive Summary

1. This report sets out the proposed Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20 which has 
been developed in accordance with the Internal Audit Charter and with close 
liaison with both the Leadership Team and Senior Management to identify and 
evaluate the key areas of risk. This will provide appropriate coverage of 
Council services in order to ensure that an independent opinion can be given 
on the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes 
at the end of the year. The Audit Plan also provides for flexibility to allow for 
new and emerging areas of risk to be evaluated during the course of the year. 
This report therefore seeks to inform Audit and Governance Committee, in the 
context of the Members being charged with the overall responsibility for 
governance, of the proposed work programme of Internal Audit to facilitate 
approval of the Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20.

Recommendation

2. The Audit and Governance Committee approve the Internal Audit Plan for 
2019/20.

Reason for Recommendation

3. This report sets out the work programme for Internal Audit for 2019/20. 
Internal Audit is defined within the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards as 
an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add 
value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation 
accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to 
evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and 
governance processes. The focus of Internal Audit work includes the financial 
systems, operational and management controls and also includes risk 
management and corporate governance as a contribution to the proper, 
economic, efficient and effective use of resources.

Page 58

Agenda Item 9



Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

The objectives of RBC Internal Audit which inform the development of the annual audit 
plan are to:
 Deliver an annual Internal Audit opinion and report that can be used by the Authority 

to inform its Annual Governance Statement;
 Independently review and appraise systems of control throughout the Council;
 Ascertain the extent of compliance with procedures, policies, regulations and 

legislation;
 Provide reassurance to management that their agreed policies are being carried out 

effectively;
 Facilitate good practice in managing risks;
 Provide proactive advice and input into any significant system or procedural 

developments;
 Recommend improvements in control, performance and productivity in achieving 

corporate objectives;
 Review and challenge the value for money processes and systems within the 

Council;
 Work in partnership with the external auditors;
 Identify fraud as a consequence of its reviews and deter crime; and
 Lead and promote the counter fraud culture within the Authority.

Audit Planning
The Authority’s Internal Audit Strategic Plan details all potential audit areas at a 
corporate level and across all service areas within RBC. Attached to each audit area is a 
risk score based on a number of risk factors which influences the frequency of audit 
review and the estimated resource requirements to cover each audit area. Specific audit 
scopes are discussed and agreed with management prior to the commencement of each 
audit to optimize the value added from each audit. The Audit Strategic Plan is reviewed 
and challenged annually in consultation with Directors and senior management to 
ensure it remains up to date, especially in these times of significant ongoing change.

4.3 The annual audit plan is determined from a number of sources:
 The Audit Strategic Plan identifying audit areas of highest risk, the date the audit 

review was last undertaken and frequency thereof;
 The corporate and service based risk registers, aligned with the corporate objectives, 

to identify areas of high strategic and operational risk;
 Discussions with members of the Leadership Team;
 Actions and developments identified in the Annual Governance Statement;
 Directors and Service Management Teams to advise on service developments and 

providing opinions on proposed audit coverage and audit scheduling;
 Issues highlighted by the Audit and Governance Committee;
 Changes and developments arising from corporate savings initiatives;
 The external auditor, advising on national developments and to avoid duplication with 

their own audit plan for the Authority;
 Issues identified from external assessments undertaken on Council services;
 External assurances required by agreed contractual or funding arrangements or 

Page 59



legislative requirements; and
 Audit resource availability.

4.4 Provision exists within the audit plan for unplanned work such as special investigations 
involving suspected fraud and irregularity and the provision of ad hoc advice. For 
2019/20 the provision for unplanned work amounts to 15.3% of the available time.

4.5 A risk based approach to individual audit reviews is now well developed. This embraces 
operational and management controls and the wider business risk, as set out within the 
Internal Audit Charter. It allows an opinion to be expressed on risk identification and 
exposure and the adequacy of systems in place to manage and control those risks. 

4.6
Internal Audit Plan 2019/20
The annual Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20 has been agreed with the Chief Finance 
Officer as s151 Officer. Agreement to individual Service Audit Plans has also been 
received from all relevant Directors through attendance at Senior Management Team 
Meetings, which form a core part of the ongoing client liaison process. A detailed 
breakdown of the Internal Audit Plan 2019/20 is included in Appendix A.

4.7 Audit coverage is prioritised and categorised between “core” work and “assurance” 
work. Core work relates to those areas, normally of higher risk, where Internal Audit 
review or support will add greatest value to the organisation. The projects within this 
category will be given the highest priority in the event of competing demands for Internal 
Audit involvement. Assurance work complements the work from the core plan and 
ensures an adequate level of Internal Audit review each year within each Service. Both 
core and assurance work form key elements of the Audit Plan to allow a formal audit 
opinion to be formed at the end of each year.

4.8 The assessment of risk for each audit within the Plan takes account of many factors 
including materiality, the risk of reputational damage, potential fraud risk, third party 
sensitivity, the extent to which the service area is governed by legislation or external 
regulation, results of previous audits or external inspections, the extent of recent change 
within processes and systems and the degree of manual intervention within processes. 
Priority within the plan will always be given to those audit areas assessed as either high 
or medium risk in this context.

4.9 The risk profile of the Authority is still dominated by the impact of the Savings 
Programme and the fundamental restructuring of Council services that is continuing to 
take place as a result of the significant reductions to funding streams being directed by 
central government and the integration of health and social care services, noting the 
establishment of a formal pooled budget arrangement for the latter. Accordingly these 
factors continue to influence many areas of Internal Audit work over the coming year. As 
part of this, specific focus will be directed towards the various transformation 
programmes that are progressing as well as the governance and commissioning 
challenges that arise from developing and adopting new ways of working and different 
models of delivering services. 

4.10 In view of the significant changes taking place within Services across the Council, this 
factor provided a starting point for the 2019/20 planning process more than the Audit 
Strategic Plan. The latter continues to be challenged and reviewed by Internal Audit, in 
conjunction with Service management, to ensure that it remains in line within the shape 

Page 60



and structure of Council Services, functions and systems and continues to support the 
overall Internal Audit approach going forward.  

4.11 Alongside the above, the core themes of the Audit Plan align with the significant risks 
currently faced by the Authority which include:
 The effectiveness of information governance within which ongoing challenges exist 

for the Council and the network of schools to remain compliant with various 
legislation and regulations, with specific reference to the General Data Protection 
Regulation which became effective on 25 May 2018; 

 Compliance with the Public Services Network which is crucial to ensure ongoing 
connectivity with key government systems;

 Other key ICT system developments which support transformational change within 
services, including the development of a new ICT Strategy, the Customer 
Transformation Programme; and other risks associated with cyber security and 
change management;

 The impact of ongoing legislative changes  and the personalisation agenda within 
Adult Care which is transforming the ways in which care is provided and funded, 
requiring a commensurate change in the systems and processes which support the 
services;

 The Council’s response and developments in processes and controls within 
Children’s Services in the light of issues previously highlighted by external bodies in 
relation to child sexual exploitation and safeguarding;

 The governance of and contractual relationships with significant external partners, 
such as Link4Life, on which increasing reliance may be placed to deliver significant 
services either for or alongside Council services; 

 The commissioning and performance management of external service providers 
including the commissioning cycle within adult care and the commissioning of 
external placements within children’s services, an area which is generating 
significant financial pressures for the Council at present;

 Significant contracts and capital projects, and compliance with procurement 
legislation and regulations, supported by the STAR shared procurement service; 

 Fundamental financial systems which support all significant transaction streams 
across the Authority, including council tax, business rates, housing benefit, Controcc 
(adult care and residential payments system), payroll, debtors and creditors;

 The robustness of decision making and approval processes, together with the 
adequacy of segregation of duties, specifically at a  time when resources within the 
Council are reducing;

 The further development of a cohesive approach to managing the risk of fraud, 
which is enhanced at a time when the public sector is facing such significant 
economic challenges; and

 Ongoing changes within overall governance structures in order to promote 
improvements in the overall control environment.

4.12 Internal Audit will continue to take a lead role, working in conjunction with the Monitoring 
Officer, in promoting and supporting the zero-tolerance approach to fraud adopted within 
the Authority. This will include:
 Supporting the promotion of and awareness of the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy 

(AFACP), including the Whistleblowing Policy;
 Further development of a pro-active approach to fraud detection which both aligns 

with and adds to the National Fraud Initiative;

Page 61



 Supporting the above approach by further developing the use of data mining 
software to highlight further potential areas of risk;

 Monitoring and reporting on the Authority’s response to various professional and 
sector led guidance and publications on best practice in fraud prevention and 
detection such as Fighting Fraud Locally;  

 Directly supporting the Counter Fraud Team to investigate and prosecute any 
identified fraudulent activity and to ensure an effective exchange of relevant 
information with various enforcement agencies; and

 Ensuring compliance is being achieved with all key policies and there is adequate 
awareness across the Authority. 

4.13 In addition to the above, Internal Audit will continue with the responsibility for co-
ordinating the National Fraud Initiative. This will assist in providing input into future 
Internal Audit planning processes in relation to any specific issues that are highlighted 
through this exercise.

4.14
Summary of Internal Audit Coverage by Service 2019/20
Planned and unplanned Internal audit coverage by Service is summarised below:

G
ov

er
na

nc
e

In
te

gr
at

ed
 H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 C
ar

e 
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g

A
du

lt 
Se

rv
ic

es

C
hi

ld
re

ns
 - 

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

So
ci

al
 C

ar
e

C
hi

ld
re

ns
 - 

Ea
rly

 H
el

p 
an

d 
sc

ho
ol

s

Ec
on

om
y

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 W
el

lb
ei

ng

R
es

ou
rc

es

Tr
ad

ed
 S

er
vi

ce
s

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

Planned
Unplanned

Planned and Unplanned Coverage by Service

Days

4.15 The focus of individual services continues to evolve and realign as structural changes 
across the Council become embedded. With ever reducing finances and resources, the 
challenges faced within these services continue to be very demanding to ensure that 
they meet the needs of customers as well as relevant statutory obligations. As such the 
level of assurance required to confirm that controls and processes are effective has 

Page 62



increased to ensure that risks are appropriately managed and overall objectives are 
achieved.

4.16 The summary also reflects the contingency of unplanned time which allows Internal 
Audit to respond to new and emerging risks which may not be currently anticipated. As 
such, and in view of ongoing changes within Council services and activities, the Internal 
Audit Plan will be constantly reviewed during the course of the year to ensure focus is 
being directed towards the areas of highest risk.

4.17

Other Sources of Assurance
The development of the plan has taken account of other sources of assurances, both 
internal and external to Council activities which sit alongside the assurances provided by 
Internal Audit. This includes not only the process of challenge and decision making 
through the Cabinet and Committee structure, forming a core part of the Constitution, 
but also various forms of self-assessment such as the annual Director’s Governance 
Assurance Statement and the Quality Assurance Frameworks within Children’s Social 
Care and Adult Care. 

4.18 In addition, there are a number of areas of ongoing self-review with reporting through to 
senior managers’ groups and to Members as appropriate, including the following:
 Budget monitoring (revenue and capital);
 Compliance with risk management strategy;
 Review and management of major projects;
 Performance management and service delivery;
 Absence management;
 Health and safety; and
 Equality and diversity.

4.19 RBC Internal Audit work closely with the Internal Audit services based within Stockport 
BC, Trafford BC and Tameside BC to audit procurement areas within the scope covered 
by the STAR Procurement hub. Any such shared audits therefore provide assurance for 
all 4 authorities and any audit reports issued are shared with each Authority and 
reported through to their respective Audit Committees. The themes to be covered within 
the respective Audit Plans in 2019/20 include the following:
 STAR performance management;
 New vendor request process;
 Spend monitoring;
 Contract management; and
 Social value delivery.

4.20 Further assurance is gained from other independent reviews undertaken by both 
external audit (Mazars) and other external bodies such as Ofsted, Care Quality 
Commission, HM Customs, Food Standards Agency, Information Commissioners Office 
etc. together with independent peer reviews undertaken within Children’s Services and 
Adult Care to evaluate processes and practices against best practice standards. Internal 
Audit is also continuing to liaise with the Mersey Internal Audit Agency who provide 
internal audit services to the Clinical Commissioning Group in order to ensure that 
appropriate levels of assurance are gained as the integration of health and social care 
services develops.

Page 63



4.21

Internal Audit Performance Indicators
The following performance indicators have been set in order to provide a measure of the 
performance of the Internal Audit team during each year.

Performance Indicator Target Estimate Target

2018/19 2018/19 2019/20

Economy

1. Cost per Audit Day (£) – excluding 
overheads

260 250 250

Efficiency

2. Productive days per auditor 190 194 195

3. Percentage of audit plan completed 96 96 96

4. Percentage of draft reports issued within 
14 days of completion of the audit

98 100 98

Effectiveness

5. Percentage of recommendations 
accepted

98 100 98

6. Results of client surveys - % of marks in 
the top two categories (i.e. very good and 
good)

98 100 98

4.22 The basis for the targets that have been established is as follows:

1. Cost per Audit Day (£)
This indicator provides a measure of the cost of the Internal Audit function by 
evaluating the total controllable cost of the function (i.e. excluding overhead 
cost allocations) in relation to productive days spent directly on audit work. 
Cost per audit day will be ahead of target in 2018/19 (i.e. lower) due to 
ongoing efforts to minimize administrative and other non-productive time and 
direct as much resource towards meeting the demands being placed upon the 
Internal Audit team. It has also been positively impacted by income generated 
from traded services which has reduced overall net cost. The target for 
2019/20 is aligned with that expected to be achieved for 2018/19 due to the 
plan of further increasing productive days per auditor as noted below, which 
should at least compensate for the impact of increases in salary related costs.    
2. Productive days per auditor
This indicator measures the efficiency of the Internal Audit function by 
calculating the average number of days spent by each member of the team on 
audit work, thus excluding non-chargeable time. Productive days per auditor 
will be slightly ahead of target in 2018/19 with significant efforts being directed 

Page 64



towards minimizing administrative time. The target for 2019/20 is slightly 
higher than the target for 2018/19 due to the continual drive for greater 
efficiency within the team.      
3. Percentage of audit plan completed 
This measure provides assurance that an appropriate proportion of the Audit 
Plan has been completed to enable an opinion to be delivered on the overall 
control environment. The percentage of audit plan completed in 2018/19 is 
likely to achieve the target for the year.  

4. Percentage of draft reports issued within 14 days of completion of the audit
This indicator measures the efficiency of audit processes to ensure that draft 
reports are produced in a timely manner after the conclusion of the audit 
fieldwork. The target for 2018/19 will be exceeded and the target for 2019/20 
has been made at the same challenging level as 2018/19. 
5. Percentage of audit recommendations accepted
This indicator provides a measure of the acceptance of client management of 
the findings and recommendations arising from audit work completed. This 
target continues to be achieved.
6. Results of client surveys - % of marks in the top two categories (i.e. very 

good and good) 
This indicator provides a measure of how client management evaluates the 
service provided by audit staff through the client survey document that 
management is requested to complete at the conclusion of each audit. The 
target continues to be achieved as Internal Audit continues to improve 
effectiveness in this area through a focus on enhancing overall service levels 
and customer liaison.

4.23 The structure of the Internal Audit team is set out in Appendix B and remains 
unchanged from 2018/19. The Head of Internal Audit considers the resource 
available remains sufficient to be able to fulfil the core objectives of the 
Internal Audit service, specifically to deliver an audit opinion on the overall 
control environment. 

    Alternatives Considered

4.24 No alternatives have been considered given the statutory responsibilities that 
are being fulfilled through this process.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. There are no cost or budget implications arising from this report.

Page 65



Risk and Policy Implications

The Internal Audit function discharges the statutory responsibilities delegated 
to the Chief Finance Officer through Section 151 of the Local Government Act 
1972 and the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 to undertake an 
effective internal audit in accordance with public sector internal auditing 
standards or guidance. The Internal Audit Plan forms the basis on which an 
independent opinion on the effectiveness of risk management, control and 
governance processes can be provided at each year end for inclusion within 
the Annual Governance Statement. The main risk of not accepting the plan is 
that this opinion cannot be delivered to confirm and support the adequacy of 
the overall governance framework.

6.

Consultation

7. An extensive process of consultation is undertaken in order to develop this 
Internal Audit Plan, as set out within paragraph 4.3, in order to ensure that all 
key areas of risk are considered. 

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. None

For Further Information Contact: Ian Corbridge, Tel: 01706925452, 
ian.corbridge@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 66



RBC INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2019/20

Plan 
days

Plan 
days

Plan 
days 

Plan 
days 

Core/ 
Assurance Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4  

 INTEGRATED HEALTH AND CARE COMMISSIONING         

1

Governance Structures and Processes
Provide support and challenge to the development of 
the governance arrangements as integration of health 
and social care services evolves alongside the 
establishment of a Local Care Organisation. Evaluate 
the effectiveness of established governance 
arrangements including decision making and reporting 
structures. 

Poor governance leading 
to failure to deliver key 
objectives and ineffective 
use of resources.

Risk H 15    Core

2

Strategic Commissioning Function
Evaluate processes and controls supporting integrated 
commissioning arrangements including the role of the 
Health and Wellbeing Board and the delivery of the 
Locality Plan. Ensure the approach aligns with the 
strategy and outcomes framework.

Poor governance leading 
to failure to deliver key 
objectives and ineffective 
use of resources.

Risk H  15   Core

3

Pooled budget
Evaluate governance, controls and reporting processes 
relating to the Pooled Budget to ensure they support 
effective management of funds, proposed savings and 
decision making.

Poor governance leading 
to failure to deliver key 
objectives and ineffective 
use of resources.

Risk H   15  Core

P
age 67



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

 ADULT CARE         

4
ALLIS
Provide assurance over the effectiveness of processes 
and controls within the organisational safeguarding 
module. 

Financial and operational 
information is not 
handled effectively 
leading to inappropriate 
outcomes or payments.

Risk M  15   Assurance

 ContrOCC      

5
Ensure financial controls and reconciliation procedures 
are appropriate to support payments to providers. 

Payments are 
inappropriate or not 
correctly accounted for.

Risk 
(material 
system) M   20  Core

Deprivation of Liberty (DoL)         

6 Evaluate the framework for DoL safeguards, and the 
processes for making and assessing applications

Inadequate processes 
may comprise the 
safeguarding of adults in 
care.

Risk H    15 Assurance

Assistive Technology (Home Improvement Agency)         

7
Evaluate the effectiveness of and compliance with new 
procedures supporting the supply of equipment and 
ensure value for money being obtained through the 
provision of this service.

Inadequate evaluation of 
needs and controls over 
supply and use of 
equipment may lead to 
wastage of resources.

Risk/ 
Compliance H 15   Assurance

P
age 68



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

 FLARE         

8
Evaluate the effectiveness of key IT controls over the 
FLARE system which supports the Home Improvement 
Agency

Ineffective controls may 
compromise the integrity 
and security of 
information and 
subsequent decision 
making.

Risk M   5  Core

 Residential Care Payments         

9
Evaluate the controls and processes supporting the 
change in policy over payments to ensure recovery of 
"top up" payments.

Third parties may default 
on payments leading to 
financial loss.

Risk M    15 Core

Quality Assurance Framework         

10
Evaluate the effectiveness of the process focusing on 
the management of actions/ outcomes and whether 
these are leading to improvements in performance.

Actions are not managed 
effectively resulting in no 
positive impact on 
performance.

Risk M  15   Assurance

 Commissioning Cycle         

11
Evaluate the effectiveness of processes and controls 
throughout the commissioning cycle including 
governance, decision making and compliance with 
Contract Procedure Rules

CPRs may not be 
followed leading to 
decisions being open to 
challenge. Ineffective 
decisions or inadequate 
contingency plans could 
lead to significant 
additional cost.

Risk/ 
Compliance H  25   Assurance

12
Disabled Facilities Grant Additional Funding 2018-19
To confirm that the grant has been spent in accordance 
with grant terms and conditions

Inappropriate claims 
which may lead to 
funding clawback.

Risk/ 
Compliance L   5  Assurance

P
age 69



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

 CHILDREN'S SERVICES - CHILDREN’S SOCIAL 
CARE         

 Commissioning of external placements        

13

Evaluate the commissioning of external placements, 
foster care and residential places to ensure decision 
making processes are robust and arrangements are fully 
evaluated and supported by contracts. Audit will include 
data systems, value for money and data security.

External costs are not 
minimised and the child's 
needs and associated 
statutory responsibilities 
of the Council are not 
fully met.

Risk/ 
Compliance H 25    Core

Post 16 Supported Accommodation        

14 Evaluate processes and controls supporting the 
transition into post 16 supported accommodation to 
ensure the quality of care remains appropriate.

Inappropriate decisions 
may impair the quality of 
care provision, especially 
where children move into 
unregulated settings.

Risk H  20   Assurance

 Special Guardianship Orders         

15 Evaluate the effectiveness of processes supporting 
Special Guardianship Orders 

Inappropriate allowances 
are paid leading to 
financial loss.

Risk M   15  Assurance

16
Assessed and Supported Year in Employment Grant 
Confirm the grant was used exclusively for the purposes 
set out in the agreement (deadline 30 June)

Inappropriate claims 
which may lead to 
funding clawback.

Risk/ 
Compliance L 3    Core

P
age 70



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

 CHILDREN’S SERVICES - EARLY HELP, 
PREVENTION AND PARTNERSHIPS         

Troubled Families         

17
Evaluate processes and controls to ensure they are 
effective and support compliance with the GM Troubled 
Family Framework and Troubled Family Outcome Plan

Lack of compliance may 
lead to funding being 
restricted. 

Risk/ 
Compliance M   15  Assurance

 Music Service        

18

Evaluate core financial controls over income and 
expenditure, including recovery and charging of time 
and safeguarding of assets.

 
 Failure to achieve 
outcomes or ineffective 
use of resources.

Risk M  15   Assurance

 Collaborative Schools         

19
Evaluate the effectiveness and use of funds provided to 
clusters of schools to ensure that improvements are 
achieved and good practice is identified and shared.

Failure to achieve 
outcomes or ineffective 
use of resources.

Risk L 15    Assurance

Primary schools (17)         

20 Review of key controls within school financial systems.

Appropriate financial and 
operational control is not 
maintained over school 
funds.

Risk L 28 14 30 30 Assurance

Secondary schools (2)       

21 Review of key controls within school financial systems.

Appropriate financial and 
operational control is not 
maintained over school 
funds.

Risk L  8 8  Assurance

P
age 71



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

22 General advice and liaison with Schools Service
Ad hoc control issues or 
developments are not 
supported in a timely 
manner.

All L 3 3 3 3 Assurance

 PUBLIC HEALTH AND WELLBEING         

23
Link4Life Client Management
Evaluate compliance with the new Link4Life contract to 
confirm that appropriate contract management 
processes and relevant controls are embedded. 

Lack of appropriate 
processes and controls 
leading to failure to 
achieve corporate 
objectives.

Risk/ 
Compliance M    15 Core

24
Public Protection
Evaluate the processes and controls supporting services 
provided in respect of contaminated land, environmental 
permits and private water supplies

Inadequate 
arrangements may lead 
to non-compliance with 
legislation or regulations 
and subsequently 
additional financial cost.

Risk/ 
Compliance M   20  Assurance

 NEIGHBOURHOODS         
Procurement of Utility Contracts         

25
Evaluate the procurement of utility contracts ensuring 
processes align with Contract Procedure Rules, support 
value for money and are supported by effective contract 
management processes.

Ineffective procurement 
resulting in lack of 
compliance with 
regulations and value for 
money not being 
obtained.

Risk/ 
compliance M 20    Assurance

Business Continuity         

26
Evaluate the effectiveness of the corporate business 
continuity arrangements taking account of all key areas 
such as strategies associated with emergency planning, 
buildings and  IT and appropriate engagement of all key 
service areas.

Inadequate 
arrangements may lead 
to a loss of services, 
failure to comply with 
legislation or regulation 
and/ or financial loss.

Risk M  15   Assurance

P
age 72



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

27
Enforcement (Environmental Action Unit)
Ensure effective controls are in place over the 
application and recovery of Fixed Penalty Notices for all 
types of offences.

Control weaknesses 
leading to loss of 
income.

Risk L    15 Assurance

28

Traffic Regulation Orders
Evaluate processes and controls relating to the 
implementation of Traffic Regulation Orders to ensure 
compliance with relevant regulations and prompt 
mitigation of identified areas of risk.

Delays in implementation 
may lead to issues 
arising which could lead 
to unnecessary cost.

Risk/ 
Compliance M  15   Assurance

 Fleet Management System         

29
Evaluate controls and processes with the Key2 system 
which is due to be implemented in April 2019, focusing 
mainly on the ordering and approval processes.

Ineffective financial 
management due to poor 
quality data.

Risk M    10 Assurance

 CCTV         

30 Evaluate the self-assessment process which assesses 
compliance with the CCTV Code of Practice

Non-compliance with 
regulations may 
compromise the 
effectiveness of security 
arrangements.

Compliance L    5 Assurance

Local Transport Capital Block Funding (Integrated 
Transport and Highway Maintenance) Specific Grant 
Determination 2018/19

      

31

Certification to confirm that expenditure relates to capital 
items (deadline September)

Inappropriate claims 
which may lead to 
funding clawback.

Risk/ 
Compliance L

 

4  

 

Core

P
age 73



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

32

Highways Incentive Funding 2020/21
Evaluate the evidence supporting the annual self-
assessment questionnaire which supports the claim for 
funding for the period 2015/16-2020/21 (deadline 31 
January)

Risk of funding being 
reduced on a percentage 
scale over the 6 year 
duration of the funding.

Risk/ 
Compliance L    4 Core

33
Local Growth Fund Determination 2018-19
Certify conditions in grant award letter have been 
complied with (deadline July).

Inappropriate claims 
which may lead to 
funding clawback.

Risk/ 
Compliance L 4    Core

34

Devolved Transport Funding Certification (Pothole 
Action Fund 2018-19)
To confirm that the grant has been spent in accordance 
with grant terms and conditions

 Inappropriate claims 
which may lead to 
funding clawback.

Risk/ 
Compliance L  4   Core

35
Cycle City Ambition Grant Determination 
Certify conditions in grant award letter have been 
complied with (deadline 30 September).

Inappropriate claims 
which may lead to 
funding clawback.

Risk/ 
Compliance L   2  Core 

 INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATION 
TECHNOLOGY         

 Public Services Network        

36
Evaluate processes and controls in place to support the 
submission of the Annual Code of Connection in 
Oct/Nov, thereby ensuring connectivity with key 
government systems.

 
Compliance with key 
areas of legislation and 
regulation are 
compromised which may 
result in loss of 
connectivity with key 
government systems.

Risk/ 
Compliance H   10  Core

P
age 74



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

Customer Transformation Programme       

37

Follow up on the actions agreed in the 2018/19 audit to 
ensure appropriate arrangements are in place to 
manage and control the progress of the CTP (ex-CCP) 
to ensure it is on track to deliver the expected benefits 
and support the changing needs of the Council's service 
provision. 

Failure to deliver the 
expected benefits of this 
project could lead to 
costs not being reduced 
in line with expectations 
and services not being 
able to deliver a more 
holistic service provision 
to customers.

Risk M 3    Assurance

38
ICT Strategy
Evaluate compliance with the ICT Strategy, which is 
being updated in 2019, and how this aligns with the 
digital strategy and overall corporate objectives. 

Lack of confidentiality, 
integrity or availability of 
information or systems 
with increased risk of 
fraud or data breaches.

Risk/ 
Compliance M    15 Assurance

 IT Security        

39
Evaluate the effectiveness of controls, processes and 
policies associated with IT security, ensuring they 
mitigate as far as possible against key risks/ threats.

Security is compromised 
leading to the corruption 
or loss of data and 
potentially financial loss.

Risk M 15    Assurance

 IT Change Management         

40
Evaluate the controls and processes which ensure that 
changes to networks or systems are introduced in a 
controlled and co-ordinated manner.

Operations may not be 
enhanced in line with 
expectations or service 
delivery may be 
impaired.

Risk M   10  Assurance

P
age 75



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

 Data Security and Protection Toolkit (DSP)         

41 Annual audit assurance to confirm compliance with the 
DSP Toolkit.

Compliance with key 
areas of legislation and 
regulation are 
compromised which may 
result in financial 
penalties or loss of 
connectivity with key 
government systems.

Risk/ 
Compliance H    10 Core

 Cyber Security         

42
Evaluate the effectiveness of management's response 
to the LGA's Cyber Security Stocktake in 2018 to ensure 
that key issues have been appropriately addressed.

Security breach may 
lead to loss of 
operations, financial loss, 
sensitive data being 
compromised or 
reputational damage.

Risk H    5 Assurance

Information Governance/ GDPR         

43

Annual audit assurance to confirm compliance with data 
protection and data security legislation and relevant 
policies and guidelines, focusing on thematic reviews to 
confirm compliance with the General Data Protection 
Regulation (GDPR) and the requirements of the Data 
Security and Protection Toolkit (including protection of 
identity, data quality and data disposal).

Compliance with key 
areas of legislation and 
regulation are 
compromised which may 
result in financial 
penalties or loss of 
connectivity with key 
government systems.

Risk/ 
Compliance H  20 10  Core

P
age 76



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

44
GDPR Compliance in Schools
Evaluate compliance with new GDPR regulations within 
schools

Compliance with key 
areas of legislation and 
regulation are 
compromised which may 
result in financial 
penalties.

Risk/ 
Compliance H  10 5  Core

 ECONOMY         

 Business Improvement District (BID)         

45 Evaluate the governance, processes and controls 
supporting the operation of the BID

Failure to achieve 
objectives due to 
inappropriate or 
ineffective use of funds.

Risk M    15 Assurance

 RESOURCES         

Annual payroll returns and pension scheme 
certification      

46
Assurance provided to s151 officer to confirm accuracy 
and integrity of annual payroll returns and P11Ds 
(deadline May). Ensure pension data for 2018/19 is 
accurate and in accordance with the Scheme 
Regulations.

Inaccurate returns are 
submitted. Compliance M 20

   
Core

 Council Tax/ Business Rates        

47
Evaluate the effectiveness of processes, systems and 
controls in relation to the visiting and inspection of 
properties to ensure income from council tax and 
business rates is optimised.

Non-compliance with 
policy and procedure 
may lead to a loss of 
income.

Risk/ 
Compliance M    15 Core

P
age 77



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

Procurement         

48

Evaluate the effectiveness of governance and controls 
within the procurement processes across the STAR hub, 
working alongside Trafford, Stockport and Tameside 
Internal Audit services, with an agreed focus on areas 
such as:
 - STAR performance management (Stockport - Q2)
 - STAR Quality Management Systems follow up 
(Stockport - Q2)
 - New Vendor Request process (Rochdale - Q2)
 - Spend monitoring (Rochdale - Q3 - local audit)
 - Contract management (Tameside - Q3)
 - Social value delivery (Trafford - Q4).

Ineffective systems 
resulting in reduced 
efficiency, additional 
costs and the risk of 
challenge to 
procurement decisions.

Risk/ 
compliance M 10 20 20 10 Core

49
Housing Benefit Subsidy
Review processes and controls supporting housing 
benefit claims. 

Benefits and taxes are 
not applied in line with 
regulations and potential 
for financial loss.

Risk/ 
Compliance 

(material 
system)

M   15  Core

Coordination and support for key policies       

50 Champion roles relating to business continuity, health 
and safety and equality.

Non-compliance with key 
policies. Compliance N/A 4 4 4 4 Assurance

 Corporate Debt Management         

51
Evaluate compliance with the Corporate Debt 
Management Policy in terms of the prompt and accurate 
raising and recovery of debts

Inadequate processes 
may lead to impaired 
cash flow or loss of 
income.

Risk/ 
Compliance 

(material 
system)

M    15 Core

P
age 78



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

 Operating expenditure/ Creditors         

52

Evaluate the effectiveness of controls over the 
processing and recording of operating expenses. As 
part of this, follow up on anomalies identified by the 
fraud module within AP Forensics data interrogation 
software to confirm the integrity of relevant transactions 
and duplicate payments arising from invoices and 
payment requests for the same services.

Inappropriate 
expenditure leading to 
fraud and financial loss.

Risk 
(material 
system)

M   20  Core

 Payroll         

53
Review the application of the honorarium and 
substitution scheme by Service management and 
evaluate the impact of any issues on payroll costs.

Payments to officers are 
not accurate or 
appropriately accounted 
for.

Risk 
(material 
system)

M    15 Core

 GOVERNANCE         
Governance structure         

54
Provide assurance on the effectiveness of the 
governance structure and input and challenge on 
relevant initiatives, including attendance and support for 
Governance Board.

Ineffective decision 
making leading to 
strategic objectives not 
being met.

Risk M 5 5 5 5 Core

Annual Governance Statement       

55 Evaluation of the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 
to ensure it aligns with knowledge and understanding of 
structures and processes in place.

Assurance for Members. Risk H 8 2   Core

 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk Plan Plan Plan Plan Core/ 

P
age 79



days
Q1

days
Q2

days
Q3 

days
Q4 

Assurance

Committee reporting         

56 Attendance, reporting, training and support for Audit and 
Governance Committee and responding to issues raised 
by Members

Members do not get 
adequate information 
and support to ensure 
effective governance.

Risk H 8 8 8 8 Core

 Risk and Insurance Management         

57
Support, challenge and evaluate the embedding of risk 
management both corporately and within all Service 
areas. Management of the Insurance function.

Failure to achieve 
objectives due to 
appropriate controls not 
being identified or 
implemented.

Risk M 5 5 5 5 Core

 FRAUD         
Managing the risk of fraud         

58

Undertake pro-active audit testing to identify any areas 
of potential fraud and ensure the Council’s overall 
approach to fraud supports the zero-tolerance culture 
through policy development and corporate fraud 
responses. Also support provided to the Counter Fraud 
Team.

Appropriate resource is 
not directed towards 
minimising the risk of 
fraud occurring.

Risk M 6 6 6 6 Core

National Fraud Initiative         

59 Manage and co-ordinate the NFI including additional 
checks on data matches where appropriate.

Statutory requirements 
are not complied with. Compliance M 4 4 4 4 Core

 OTHER         
  60 Audit planning and liaison    2 2 2 10  

P
age 80



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

61 Completion of audits from 2018/19 – planned and 
unplanned    50     

62
External traded services
Perform audits of School Fund Accounts and grant 
certifications to generate external income for the 
Service.

   8 8 8 8  

  
63 Follow up of audit recommendations to ensure 

completed    9 9 9 9  
  

 TOTAL FOR PLANNED AUDIT WORK    285 271 279 271  

 CONTINGENCY FOR UNPLANNED WORK         

64
Audit resource set aside to respond to new and 
emerging risks and issues identified during the year 
plus management requests and ad hoc work

   25 35 20 20  

65
Audit resource set aside to respond to suspected 
fraud issues, whistleblowing referrals or other 
investigations that may be requested.

   25 25 25 25  

P
age 81



Appendix B                                Internal Audit Team Structure at as 1 April 2019

    

Head of Internal Audit 

 Audit Manager  Audit Manager

Auditor

(Term time 
only)

Senior 
Auditor

Senior 
Auditor

Auditor 

Auditor

P
age 82



Document is Restricted

Page 83

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 86

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1,2,3,4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6a External Audit Progress Report
	6b Accounting Policies 2018/19
	7 Risk Management Progress Report - Q3 2018/19
	Append. 1 for Risk Management Progress Report - Q3 2018/19
	Append. 2 for Risk Management Progress Report - Q3 2018/19

	8 Internal Audit Quarter 3 Report 2018/19
	9 Internal Audit Plan 2019/20
	Append. 1 for Internal Audit Plan 2019/20
	Append. 2 for Internal Audit Plan 2019/20

	11 IT Disaster Recovery Follow Up Audit
	Append. 1 for IT Disaster Recovery Follow Up Audit


